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Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity
Directors Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2024

The [rectors present thedir repor, togethar with the financial stalemants, an tha controlied antity for the year ended 30 Jung 3034,

[irectors
The name of tha directors in office at arry bhme dunng, or simce the and of, the year am:

Chair Eandan Suiheriand

Secretary Aandrew Elvin
Tosrence Bathke Resigned 3 Hovembear 7023
Michaela Duke Appoinded 11 December 2023
Draren Canders
Helen Glanvilia
Jean MoRuwin
Peter Mariarty
Adarn Morey Resigred 23 January 2024
Charyl Ling Appointed 25 March 2024
Laanng MNewbeny
Daniel OBron

Directars have been in ofice zinca the siat of ihe financial yaar o the dabe of this report unless sthenwise slaled.

Information on Directors

Mamsa: Gordon Sutherland

Tither: Board Chasr

Chuabfcations: BSci{Hons)Bid
GradDipBusAd

Expenenca and experiise: - 37 years in the construclion and property indusiry including pariods of servce for the
following Mol companies;

- FKP (Retail Development Manager - Penegian Sphngs)

- Watpas (Manager Design and ConstruckDevelopmant Managaes)

- Inwatvesmeand in the major projects such as redevalopmant of Lang Park and Brsbans Crcket Ground

- Company develapments including Addisan Avenue residentsl Bulmba, Bolanic Residantial Development,
Mitcheiton, Rhders Apariments, Brisbana

= John Holland Pty Limited {Busingss Developman! Managers)

- Lend Lease (Project and Development Manager)

- Consulens Py Lirmnited (Progect Manager)

- Ciira Constructions Limited {Construciion Managar)

= Watts Constructions Ply Limibed {Chief Planner)

Special resporsibilibes Mamier Prejecis, Programs and Planming Commitise
Mamber Finance, Audi and Risk Commitlisg
Mamber Davelopmant Commition
Board Mamber Puposa Real Eslate Limted.

Hamae: Anddraw Ehvin

Tia: Chial Exacutive Officar

Clualifications: WA B (Hons)
GAICD

Expariance and axpertise: - Owver 25 years as Sanior Execudive Manager and CEQ of community housing providaersihuman sarvice
ofgansation;

- Licensad Real Estate Professional,
= Dirgchor of Community Mousing Indushny Associalion Queensland, Membar RE).

Specal responsitalilies Secretary Coast2Bay Heusing Group Limited
Managing Direclor, Secretary and Board Member Puipose Raal Estaba Limibsd.
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Directors Financial Report for the year ended 30 June 2024

Information on Directors {continwed)
Hamea: Daren Cardow
Tithe: DHrescior
Qualifications BBus

CPA

GACD

Expistience and expeitise:

Specil respansdibes:

- Professsonal Accountan], pracicing for oves 25 years

- Extansive financial raporing, business development and corporale govemnanca capabililies

- Eaperienced director halding several Board positions wilh balh commercial and MFP arganisations as well a5
Advisory Boards with numerous SME's across diverse indusings

- An pppoinked exdermal sudsor for 8 vanety of local community arganisations, in addiian (o commedcial and
siatutary engagemenis.

Chadr of the Finance, Audit and Risk Committes

Mame. Michaela Duke
Tithe:; Direstios
Cualficabons: Bachelor of Laws (Hong)

Expermncg and sxpariise;

Spacial resporsibiliag:

Bachelor of Intemational Business
GradDip Legal Practca

- Principal Soliciloe of Duke Legal

- Chosr 15 years' experiencs s a legal praclibones practcing o the areas of property law, commearcial law and wills
ared estales

- Exparience in large commarcial proparly transactons and SMSF transacians

- Expariancad in complay eslate planning including lestemeantary nests and stucluning

kamber Financa, Audd and Risk Commiltes
Board mamber Pupese Real Eslate Limied to 28 May 2024,

Hame:
Tithe;
Califications:

Experance and exparhas;

Special responsibilities

Halan Gilamwlle

D] o
GradDipSocisiSeinnce
GradCertHousinghgmi
DipBusMgmt

Cart IV Waorkpéace Assessment
Coart IV Warkplace Trainirg
Licenced Reahor

- 12 yaars wih the Department of Housing in property and tenancy management rokes

- Partnir in privale development company, wenner of HiA Sunshina Coast Best Residential Estaie 2000 and HIA
Quesnstand Medium Density Project of the year 2000

= 2% yaars in family-crvned roeal estate businesses,

Member Progects, Programs and Flanning Comenities
Baaed Chair Purpcess Real Estale Limied.

Marma,
Tithar
Qualificalicns:

Experi=nce and expeitsa:

Special mepansbibies:

JEan MeRiras
Director

FAIRg

MAICD

- 30 years boadd expediance sooss 8 ranga of industries

= 21 years CEQ and Senicd Executive in 8 range of seclos including primary baakh, educabion, agrculbure and
regional devalopmaen

- Extensine expensnce in membership of govemmaent adnsary bodes

- Wide experience in govarnment and non-govermman funded projects, repoting and evaluation

= Designid and develaped 130 9001 accreditation lor a number of agencies

= Presadoeni, COTA Cid = Council of the Ageing

- Commities Member Gambing Community Benedit Fund

Chair Projects, Programs and Planning Commibles,

Pasgn 3
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Infarmation on Direclors (contenued)

Hama:
Tigha:
Qualiications:

Expavignce and eapodise:

Special nesponsibdilies;

Pater Moriarty

Dirachor

Cardicaba Il Projact Managamen

Eccnomics ol Develaprment, Brisbane (Chidlay)

Litigation and Governance, Briskans (Chifley)

Effective Comminicatian, Mediabien and Negoliabion Skills Program, Brisbane (Chiflay)

= Direcior of Fresh Direclions (Desslopmant 2nd Consullancy Practicn)

- [Davetoper of residantial land sulbdivision, lownhousa, und, commearcial, indusirial and miked-use pojEcts
- Signiicani development expanencs in prior redes &8 Development Manager and Senlor Plannar at large
davelopmant, constiuction ard consullancy Companes,

Chair Developmant Commilbes

Iamea
Tl
Quadfications:

Expenance and capeitsa;

Spadal responsibadities:

Charyl Ling
Dhrectar

Felow of Ihe Instiube of Chartered Accountanis (FCA) far England and Wales
GAICD

BA (Hons) European Business

Dhplcrn Benabawirt, Belnebseirischall (Business Shudies)

=« KPMG trained Inemationad Finance Executioe and Board Advisar with a sirang track recoed in highly regulated
conkaxts

- Moee than 30 years expananss indelvaning the full rangs of sirategss, operational and financial respansibilibes in
il cullural and socially diverse saclon including lelecoms, local goverreent, baniing and health

= Former Equity Partreir in audit, accountng and busingss consulling frm Specialising in ihe banking and fhance
sactor, mporting bo infarnabional parend companies, regulators and audil commitiees

- Expenenced in delvering govennance and linancal parfomanca redated o advica i nod for profil enties operating
i Wanuaby inchuding Oxfam and Habd for Humanity

= 2023 Mapsiralian CFO of the Year fward Finalisi

= Curent CFO and co-camer of tha internabicnal franchising health and fitness group Jelts Feness Glabal,

Member Finanoe Audil and Risk Commilles

Mame:
Tiflhe:
Cuadifications:

Expanence and experiisa:

Special responbibies

Leanna Newberry
Dhirectar

B.Bus (Land Economy)

Graduste Carlificate in Adult and Workplace Educalien
Gt IV Trainng ard Assessment

Cet IV Project Managemani

JP Chualified (CHd)

Registerad Real Estabe Professional in Chusansland

- 30 years in commearcial real aslate with leading global firms - JLW, CBRE, Cushman and Wakefield, and Enight
Frank

- [Extenaive expenence in real astale and facdibes managerment [or balh cwners and occupien

= Track record in design, develapment and implemeniation of properly management policies and proceduras. at
lecal, regional ard global lewel

- Successiully designed, developed and delivered adult leaming programs @ real eslate across Ausiralia and Hew
Zeakend

= Curngntly Head of Transfoemation, Assel Management Seraces al Knight Frank, Australia

= Invwalved in several commandy organisations on tha Blackall Range

Members Project, Programs and Planning Commalies
Board Member Purpase Real Estate Limiad
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Information an Directors [continued)

Marms; Darial O'Eran

Tithe:: Ditecior

Chualdications: BENG(CIMIL)
MIEALIST
FETZ T
FAIM

Exparance and axpartise: - Owar 20 years busingss expenencs in the planning, capilal imestmant and dalvery of major Defence. Asraspace,
infrastruciums and resource progcts
- Background in both corporate (pubdcly listed, large private and governmend cwned comporaticns) and prolessional
S o
- Significant expenancs in highly regulated envirgnmenis of Asraspace, Dedence, consiruction, angineenng, walsr,
msources, energy and inlrastruchura,

Special responsibilities: Mambar Devalopmant Commitiae

RESIGHATIONS Informsation (o date of resignation

Nama: Temence Bethke (resigned 3 Nowember EEIE-‘JF

Tithe: Managing Direchor

Cualiiicabians: Bachalor ol Laws
Accredsed Propenty Law Specaks!

Expirignce and expedt=e; - Ower 30 years' expanance as Managing Director of Munre Thompson Lawyers

Speacial reaponaibdities:

« Praciices in wnil deselopment, land subdsision, commedcial property transfers and joind venbures

« Pasi association wilh a wide range of taunsi-orentated developmants, including major projects across the Sunshindg
Coast

- Accredited as & Proparty Law Specialst by the Queensland Law Society, an honour hekl by few solicitons in
Cruesttrigland

- Appointed a fellow of the UDIA in recognilion of his services 1o tha proparty industry.

Member Finance Suxdit and Risk Commities

Hama:
T
Qualificalions:

Expenence and expedisa:

Spetial responsiibes;

Adam Morlay (resigned 23 January 2024)

Diirachor

BBusProgVal

Real Eslate Licence

- Owver 20 years of experience in the propary finance indusiry, having worked for St Gearge Bank and ANZ Bank
including financing of large scake residential, commercial, refail and indusinal projects arcund Ousensdland and
Martham Termtary

- Exparmnced financial imeestmant activity with private svesions, syndicates, joinl wanbures and property fund
managers in Guaensland and interstate

- I eary 2020, commencad with Ray White Commarcial Noosa and Marcochydon as a Commercial Sales
Consultant

bamber Davelopmant Commitien
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Meatings of Directors

The number of mestings of the canfraliad antily's Baard of Diractors [the Board’) and of each Board commities bald during the year ended 30 June
2024, and the number of mestings atlended by each Direcion wera:

o e R mﬂﬁh: “and| Development Gommittee
: il Finance, Auditand Risk | Planning
Directar Full Board L m i cm
Attonded | Hold* | Attonded | Held® Attonded | Hold® | Attended | Held*
Gaordan Sulherland (Char) 10 10 ] 1] L+ 3 L il
Andrew Elen (Secretang)” 10 10 5 [ -] i Li] i
Termence Bethka (i) a 4 z 3
Michaeka Duke {i) 4 B ? 2
Draran Candow 10 10 ] &
Helan Glanville 10 i L &
Jaan McRuvig 10 id G ]
Pater Modiaity 4 10 & &
Adam Modley (i) 3 5 0 3
Chenyl Ling (i) 3 a 1 i
Leanne Mewbarry L] id & L
Dranaz] O¥ Brien 5 10 4 &
* Aftendance to commities meatings in capacity as CEC of Coast2Bay Housing Group Linibed
& 'Hell" represents e nurmber of maetings conductad duning the bme the Director was in offica,
(i) there wane Bao resignabons during the year,
(il Hrite weare bat i appainkments during the year
Review al Dperations
024 DOEY
¥ ]
Conzoldaled sunplus of the Conscbdabed Group 62411144 27 404,612

A e al The opedalicns of the Condalidated Gaoup durng the fnancial year and the rasults of those oparations found that the increases in
govermemaend capital granks aearded to the Consolidated Group fo atlend 1o the housing creis within the Commursty Heusing Sector hava resulted in a
significant increase in equity for the Group. This drectly contriuted bo an increase in the Conscldated Groups year on year surplus resulls, a kange
escalation in non-current assats offsel by only minos changes bo liabiktes,

Koy Performance Indicators
Opevabona and fnancin

Proparteon of funding provided by

- Govamment granis. for capial programs
- Gewwernment grants. for oparational programs

- Rantal incoma

- Cibar income
Proponion of funding spent on

- Rani sopense

- Wages and salaries

- Propaity expanses

- [apreciabon expanse

- Al piher gapansEs

W 2023
8% 5%
% 12%
X% 8%
i T
6% 4%
e Hw
16% 12%
12% 7%
& 2%




Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity
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Significant Changes in the State of Affalrs
M sigralicant changes in e Consalidated Group's slate of alleirs cecurred during the financal year.

Principal activities
The principal actvibies of fha Consolidated Group during the financial year ware i defiver community and affordable housing solutions ta angeted
houeahiide in moed who (ace baredns 1o anlry b the genaral kawesing marked, and conduct business as a real estate agant in thea commarcial sechor

Events Subsaguent to the End of the Reporting Perlod

Cthier than thad disclsed in Mote 19 of the financial statements, no matbers or circumstanoes have arisen sinte the end of he finandcal year which
significantly affecied or may significantly affect ihe operations of the Conscldated Group, the resulis of those operabions, of the stabe of affairs of the
Censobdated Growp in future ingncial yaars

Likaly Davelopmants and Expected Resulls of Oporations

The Group will continue o pursue ils sirabeghc objectives to sustain and incrasse community hawsing cutcomes and profitabdity, This will entad
continued focus on grant submissions (o governmenl b enable secial and affordable housing solutons in the community of oparations. The Group
phans 16 continue t undenake assel developmant and acquestions ard improve business and operabonal eficiency to achave better than
recammanded industey benchmarks. Thes wall assist ongaing and bnges-lem fulfilment of saniractual ebigasans, nancial servicing and ke
ceganisational grewth goals as identified in the 10 year strabegic and forward financial plan

Environmantal Regulation

The Consolidated Group's operaticns are nok regulaied by any signilicant emdnonmental regulation wnder & law of the Commonwealth or of a state or
L rfibary

Opticns

Mo opticns aver lssed shates or interasts in the Company o a controlied entity were granted during o since tha end of the inancial year and here
wede N0 oplians outsianding al the date of thés reporl. Mo shares or inberests in the Company or 8 conlrelied enlity hawve been issued during or since
the end af lhe year a5 a esull of he axencss of an oplicn ever unissued shares of inlenasls.

Indemnification of Officers
Mo indemnities. have been given o Inswanca pramiums paid, during or since the and of the financial year, for any parsan who is or has been an
odlicar or auditar of the Consoldabed Group.

Proceedings on Behalf of Company

Mo parsen has appled for kave of cowt to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company ar inservena in any procaedings to which the Company is a
party for the purpose of tking responsdility on bahall af the Compary for all or army par of those proceadings.

Ther Company was nol a party lo any swch proceedings during the yea

Coniribations on Winding wp

Im the evanl of the company being wouend up, the consBution siates that each member is requined to contribube a madmum of 1,00 each tovards
msatirg ary culslanding obbgatons of the entity. AL 30 June 2024, the todal amounl thal members of the company ane kabhe to condrbuta if tha
company & wound up & 31300 (2023 $13.00).

Auditor's Independence Daclaration

A copy of ke Auditor's Independence Declaration as reguired vnder subdivsion 60-C section 60-40 of the Ausiraden Chanlies and Mod-for-Profls
Commissian Ach 2002 and under secticn 3070 of the Corporabions Act 2001 is sal out immedisiely afer this Directars' repor.

Directors Resclution

This repo is signed in accardance with a resclution of the Board of Dirsclors.

O bahall of the Direciors

e L

Gorden Suthedand
Board Chait

Macoochgclore 26 [2 [ o

Fage 7
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COAST2BAY HOUSING GROUP LIMITED
ABMN 32 127 308 856

FINAMCIAL REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2024

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER AGNG ACT 5 60-40 TO THE DIRECTORS OF
COASTIBAY HOUSING GROUP LIMITED

In accordance with Subdivigion 60-C of the Aussiralisn Chanfes and Nol-for-profits Commission At 2012, | am
pleased o provide the following declaration of indepandence to the drectors of Coast2Bay Housing Group
Limited. As the lead audit parinir for the audit of the inancial slatements of Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited
for the year ended 30 June 2024, | declare that, &0 the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended
30 June 2024 thera have bean no confraventions of

i, Ehe guddcr indfepentdance requirements of the Australian Charifies and Nof for Profifts Commissian Aol 2002
In rekabion 10 e audit; and
i, any applicable code of prafessional conduct in relation 1o the audit,

Lerved Powthery

Love +
Partners
1 e R

¥

Bret! J Buntain
Direstor
RGA Mo, 213172

Dale: 25 August 2024

Page 8
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Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2024

General Information

The fnancial stalemens cover CoasiZBay Housing Group Limited a5 a consolidated entity consisting of CoastdBay Housing Group Limsted and it
cantreled enlilies al the and of, of dufing. the year. Tha financial statamants ana prasentad in Auestralian dollars, which is tha conbrolisd antitys
funclianal and presentalian curmency.

The regisiened olfsse and principal place of business of the confrolied andity is: Tower 2. Lavel 4, Kon-Tiki Buiding, 55 Plaza Parade, Marsochydire,
Clid 4558, & deseripion of the busness operations and prnciple actvites is included within the Deecicrs’ Ropeat with fusthes infeematian contained
within (he noles o the Finandal Stalsmens.

The Financial Stabsmants ame authondad for Bsue, in accordance with & resolution of the Board of Directors, on tha date of signing of tha Direckars’
Dpclaration. The Direclors have Ihe power 1o amend and resses the Financial Stalemants.

For mlcamation in relation ta Coast2Bay Housing Group Limted and #s controliad enlit's Financial Statemants, ploase call 07 S451 2900,

Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Consolidated
Mota 2024 2023

-1 $
Revenueea 2 TI.7ED 125 29,508, T55
Interast revenue 104, 380 55347
Gain on salke of assabs B 745 asy
Audilor fees &2 (23,031} {23 888)
Bad and doubtid debts sapense (164, 480 {T7.846)
Depreciation expenss | 1,888 700 i(2.394,101)
Employes benelis expenss {4,194, 101) {3,770.830)
Finane cosls (107 547} {88.337)
Olher expanses {1,154,423) (528 G04)
Proparty expenses {2,356,323) {1,655 836)
Reni paid lo caners {5,615 33F) 4,761,005
Elurq_ﬂuﬂur the year attributabile to the mambers of CoastZBay Housing Group 13 62411 144 16,254 517
Oiher compeahansnee ncomss for the yoar 13 o 11,150,095
Total comprehensive income for the year attributabide o the members of CoastiBay
Housing Group Limited 62,411,144 2T 404,612

—

The aceomparnying mafes form part of hese fnancial slafamenis,

Page 11




Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ag ab 30 June 2024

Ass0ls

Cwrrenl assols

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and alher recessablas
Total currand assets

Hon-curmant assots
Right-of-use asseis

Propety, plant and equipment
Total non-currani assats

Total assels
Liatilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Conlract labikes
Emphayes benedils

Leasa liabikties
Boumreings

Total current liahilities

Non-curment labdlites
Employes benefils

Leasa Habilies
Barmorwings

Total non-Cufrént lsbililies

Total labilities

Het assets

Equity
s Capitad

Retaned surpluses

Capilal mainienance redarnys
Agael nealieabon resensa

Todal equity

10
1
12

10
"
12

13
13
LB

Tha acoompanying nofes foem pand of these Bnancin simarmanis

Condolidated
2024 2023
5 5

14,379,326 B.847 841
1,287 61 1420, M3
15,677,287 10,368 543
300,319 830,524
113,101,737 92,053,385
113,402,056 92,833,819
120,079,343 63362462
2,035 680 1,503,967
8,148 845 1,463 650
411,770 441,880
262 264 646,563
4,054 435 114,588
15,317,163 4,071,084
20,882 11,081
67,190 315,432
549,020 8,540,881
1,037,032 8,667 54
16,354,255 13,038,517
112,725,088 50,313,844
13 13
B0218.217 27 76,20
1,354,058 1,382 5
21154760 21154760

112,725,088 3

Paga 12




Goast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 Juna 2024
Capital Asnot

Issued Retained | maintenance |  revaluation Ll

capital reserve reserve Total equity
Consclidated $ s 5 § [
Balance al 1 July 2023 13 2T, 776,27 1,402,901 21,154,780 BO,313,544
Surplus i B2 A11.144 o a 82,411,144
(dhar comprehensang incomae Tor hea year 0 i L] a (1]
Transbers 0 28,802 (28,802} 0 0
Tolal comprehenaive income for the year ] G2 430, 145 [28,802) i B 411,144
Transactions willh ownars i fbair capacily as
EnTIars!
Share Issusf(cancelation) 1] 1] [1] 1] 0
Balance at 30 Jume 2024 13 90,216,217 1,354,098 I1.‘EE-II,'||'H¢ 11 EI?HIHE

capital surplus rosarve reserve | Total equity
Consolidated 5 5 5 $ -
Balance at 1 July 2022 13 11,574,003 1,330,651 10,004 665 22,009,332
Surplus a 16,254, 517 1] i} 16,254 517
Cilher comgrehenaive income far the year 1] 1] o 11,150,085 11, 160,065
Transfars 1] [52 24) 52 245 1] L 0
Total comprehensie income for the year a 16,202 2648 52245 11,150,095 27 A0 512
Transaclions wall cwners in ihair capacily 83 owarers:
Share Esuaicancallaton) i 0 it 0 0
Balance at 30 June 2023 13 27,776,271 1,382,901 1,154,760 50,313,644

The accompanymng aoles lorm parf of these Anancial sfafemeants

Fage 83




Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the yvear ended 30 Juna 2024

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts rom customers (inchuding G5T)
Paymanis b suppiers and employess (inchading G5T)

Intares] repened

Sponsoeships and donaticns recedved
Qparating grants received (nduding GST)
Interest paid

Hat cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows frem investing activities

Procesds from salke of property, plant and equipment
Gapital grants recehad

Faymanis for property, plant and equipment

Hat cash used In investing activities

Gash flows from financing activities

Share isswealcancellation)

Paymens for right-cl-use assels

Addilens 1o borrowings

Paymanis foe borrowings

Mel cash generaled by | {used in) inancing activities

Mot increase/[decroase) in cash hald
Cash and cash equavalents at the baginning of 1he Bnancial year

Caszh and cash eguivalents at the end of the inancial year

The accompanying nodes fern part of hese financial stalements

1L

12

Consolidated
2024 2023
$ 5
10,468 897 9,122, 592
(19,404,558) {13,917 408)
{8,505 661) {4794 B1T)
104,360 57,756
128,115 1,203,893
12,076 860 7,381,506
{107 54T) {E9,337}
3.267,147 3,769,433
16.818 10,455
68, 753176 T 156,711
(62,324.50%)  (19.751,179)
6,445,091 {B,584,013)
1] d
(28, T00) (2/050,828)
1] B,600,000
{3,652.053) (720,330
4, 280,753 £, 798 843
5,431,485 (15,737)
B84T 841 B.863,578
14,370,328 8,847 Ba1
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CoastZBay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of preparation

The financial stabamanls are general purnpose financial slatements that have bean prepaned in accordanca with Ausiralian Acocounbing Slandards —
Simphfeed Disclosures of Ihe Australian Accounting Standards Boand (AASE) and the Ausirakan Chariies and Not-for-prodits Commission Acl 2012
Thar anfity is a nod-for-pralit entity for financial reporting purpases wunder Ausbralan Accawnting Standards

Austrakan Accounting Standards sat out accounting pokches thal the AA5E has concluded would resull in financial stalemends containing relevant and
raligble infonmateon aboul ransachons, evants and conitons. Matanial accouning pobckes adopiad in the preparation of these financial stalemaents
are presented below ard have been consistently applad unkess slated otherss

The linancial statemenis, excspd for the caah low informalion, have been prepared on an accrual basis and ane based on histoncal cosls. modfiad,
whare apglicable, by the measurement al fair value of selecied non-current assels, inancial assets and financial liabdilies, The amounts presented in
thar financial statemants hane Been rounded o the nearest doltar

The linanceal stabements wane suthonded at the dats of the Deecion’ Declaraton

The praparation of the fmancial statements requings the use of certain crifical accounting estimates. |t also reguires managpemenl o exercise is
judgamanl in the process of applying fhe controlied entity's accounting policies. The argas involving a higher degres of judgement of complesity, or
ardas whene pdgements and estimales ane signilicant to the financial stabements, are disclosed in Note 1 (),

{b) Principles of consolidation

Thea financsal stabemenls include the value of all revenues, expenses, assals, kabilittes and equity of Coast?Bay Housing Group Limiled and ils
confrolled entitess, Puipose Real Estade Limited, Hudson Badinga Limited and Cosmmunity Build 1o Renl Limited. Thase ae the consolidated financial
stataments. Subsidiany datails s provided in Note 23,

An antity condrols anathar anlity when the enlity is axposed o, or has dghts 1o, vanable returns from its involvement with the enlily and Fas the abilty
io affact thasa relums through s power (o direct tha activitles of the antity. Subsidianes ara fully consolidatad from the date on which contral is
iranafesred b0 the conknoling enlity. They ane de-condaldated frodm tha dabe thal conbrol ceages.

Intercemparry ransactions, balarces and uneealised gains on transactions bebeesn entiies in tho consclidated entity ang elminabed, Unrealised
loases are alag aliminabed urdess tha ransaction provides evidenca o the impairment of the assel ransherred. Accounting pobicees of subsidiaries
have baen changed whete Mecessan ko andung corsislency wilh the pelicies adepled by e consobdaled enlity.

(¢} Current and non-current classification

fisseds and liabiMies are presantad in tha stabement of fmancial pesition based on current and non-curmend classification

A assal 5 classilied as curment when: i i sdher expected 1o be realsed or imended 10 ba sol ar consumad in the contiolizd entit’s nanmeal
oparating cyche: it s held primarily for the purpose of irading; it & expecied o be realised withen 1.2 monghs aler the reparting penad; or (he assel s

cash or cash eguivaliant unless restricted from baing exchanged or used io sefile a liabilty for at keast 12 maonths after the reparing pediod. A alked
asgels are classdiod 85 non-cument

A liabity = classied &s cunrent when: & ks either expached (o be sellied in the coneclidabed entity’s normal operating cycle; it s held prmarily far ihe
plapads af irading: il is due 1o be setiled within 12 monthe afler the reporting pedied, of thees & no uncandibional nght 1o dafar the settiemant of the
lighility for a1 least 12 months aties the reporting period, Al ather liabiiSes ane classified a8 non-cierent

(d} Accounting policies

The principal accounting pokcies adopted in the preparation of the financial stalerents dre sel out below. These pokces have been consishanty
appliad to all the years presantad, unless otherwise sialed

{i} Revenue and other income
Revonus recognition
Revanm from contracls wilh cuslvmers

Tha Enity is frsd required to debamira whather amounts recoioed are accountod for as Revenue per AASE 15 Revenue from Conbracls with
Cuslomers or Income per AASE 1058 Incoma of Mol-for-Profit Enlites,
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Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 Juna 2024

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Funding arrangements which are enforoeable and contain sufficiently specific perormance cbligations ane recognised s revenua widar ARSE 15,
Otherwise, such srangaments ane accouniad for under AASE 1058, whera upon initial recognition of an essel, e Enlity is required 1o consider
whedhar any ather Bnanciad statement elemants should be recognised (e.g. financial iabiltes egresanting repayable amounts), with any difference
being recoghised immediataly in profil or loss as moome

Thia Enliy is first required bo debarmine whelhar amounts receved aa accounted for a8 revenue per AASE 15; Revenue from Contracts wilth
Customens of Income per AASE 1058; Income af Nat-for-Fralit Endities.

Opevaling granis, donalions and baguests
When the conlrofled ently recaives operating grant revene, denalons of beqieests, il assasses whalber the contrac! ia enforceable and has
sufficiently specific performance oblgafions in accordance with AASE 15

Whan the condiions of AASE 15 are salisfied, the conlrollad enlity:

- idientifaes each parfarmance chligation relating 1o the gran,

= recognises a contracl liabilly for s obligations under the agreement. and

- recognisas mvenue as i salishies its performance obligations

Wnere the contiact s ral enfoicesble o does rot have suMicintly specilic perfarmance oblyatans, the conlrolled ently.

- rEcogrises the assel reostesd in accordance with the recagnilian requirements of ofher applicable accaunling standands ($or exampla ARSE 8,
AASH 16 AASH 116 and AASH 128

- recegnises related amounts (Deing conlributions by ownars, leasa liabdity, financial instruments, provisions, revenue or conirach liabdity arsang from
& conlract wilh a cusiomer); and

« FRCOgNISeS incom immiediately in prodil o kss as the diflerence babwean the indial canmying amount of (he assal and the relaled amoun.

Caplal grants

Whan the canlrolled antly recahed o capalal gran, il recognises & kability far the excess ol the intial canying amaount of tha financial assat receed
avier any relabed amounts (being contribufions by owners, lease Eability, inancial instruments, provisions, revenue o contract liabilty arsing from a
contracl with a cusiomer) recognised undar olhar Ausiralian Acocunting Standands

The comtralied enbly recogatses incoms in profil o kss when of as the conbroled entity satisfies iis obdgatons under lerms of the grani

Irlavesl Fcormea

Interes] revenus is recognesed & intarest atcnies usng the effective intarest mathod.

Other revenug

Othes revenue & recognised when il s received or when the right Lo recaive payment ts established

Volimlear Senices

The cantralled entity has elected nat 1o recognise volunieer Services as either revenug of cther o of conlribulion received. As such, any ralated
consumpbion or capitalisation of such esources recossed is also not necognised

() Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held sl call wih financial msbtulions, othes shor-term, highly quid investmants wilh
ariginal maluritses of thres months or less. These ane readily convertible fo known amounts of cash and which ars subjec! bo an malgnificant nsk of
changes in valua

(i} Trade and ofher receivables

Trade and other recessablas are amounts due from shaseholders as well 85 amounis receivable from customers for services or goods sold. They afe
neconised al fair value and measened al amortised cosl, less any provision for mpalemenl. The cument partion represants amounts to be coliecied
withn 12 monfhs

{iv]) Inventeries
The conlrolled enfity does ot hold any invenbong. Thene ane no Bems held Tor re-sale,
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Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 Juna 2024

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

{v) Leases
The contralled entity as lessee

Al nceplion of a conlract, the candrolied enlity assesses if the contract containg or is & lease. H there is a lease presen], a righl-of-use asset and 8

lease Babdity & recognised by the confrolled entity whara the controlied antity is @ lesses. However, all condracis that are classiiied as
ghor-term |easas (leass with ramaining lease term of 12 manths or less) and leases of low valiss assels are recognised as an operating expanse on a
slraight-line basis over the lem of tha lease,

Initially the leasa liabiity is measwuned at the present value of the lease payments sl b be paid a1 commencamanl date. The lease paymenls ade
discounied al the inferest rabe implicit in the leass. If this rabs cannot be readily determined, the conirolled entify uses the incremanial berrowing rabs.

Leass payments included in the measurement of the lease Gabiity are a5 follows:

- fiwnd lpase payments lass any lease incantves:

- wariable lase paymants thal depand on an index or rate, initially measuwed using the indax or rate al the commencemant dale,

- the amaunt expecied to be payable by the lsses under residual value guarantees;

- fhhe exedcis price of purchase options, if [he lesses is reasonably canain 1o exercise the oplions:

= Ipase paymants under axbension oplions if tha lesses is reascnably codtain lo exercisa the cplicns; and

- paymants of penakias for terminating the lase, i the kase barm reflect the exercise of an option b tarmanake the lease

The righl-gf-use assets comprise the indial measwemant of the cormesponding lease liabilty as mentioned abova, any laase payments made al o
belore the commencament date as well as any initiad direct costs, Tha subsequant measuramant of the rght-of-u=a assels ks at cosl less accumulated
depreciabicn and impainmeanl losses.

Rghd-af-use assets are depréciated over the lease lerm of useful ke of the undering assel whichever is the shoriest Whene & lease Iranatars
awnership of tha undarlying assel or the cosl of the righf-of-use assel reflects that iha controlied enlity antcpates o axercise a purchass oplion, tha
specific assat is dapreciatad ower he useful e of the undarlying assat.

Contessionary leasos

For leases that have significantly balow-markal terms and condiliors principay to enabda the conitrollad entity fo further its chjectives (commonly
known as pepparcomiconcessianary leases), tha entily has adopted (ha temporary relief undar AASE J018-8 ard measures the right of use assets at
©oal on inifial recognithan.

The confralled entity as lessor

Tha conkrobed ontity sub-laases properties undor headlease arrangemants and thorefore acls as lessor. Upon anfering indo each contrac! as a
kzssor, the controled anlity assesses if the lease 5 a finance or oparating kasa

Tha contract s classdfied a5 a inance kaasa whan the tarms of the lease transfer subslanhaly all the risks and resards of cwnership ko the lessoes. All
other laasas nol within Bhis definibon afa cassilied &8 operating leases.

Ranlal incoms received from aparaling kbasas & recognsed on a siralghl-ling basis oves tha barm of tba specdic lease
Indial direc! costs incurned in entering inko an operaling lease (a0 legal cost, cosl to salup) are intluded in the casrying amount of he leased agasl
and necognised &6 an axpanse an a straight-ling basis over the lease term

Rental ncomea diss wnder finance leases e recognised as recaivables al the amauwnt of the controliad entity's ral invesiment in the leases.

VWhen a conlract is detesmined 1o include laase and non-lease compenents, (e Enlly u=es e relative sland-alone price ta allocabe the consideration
undar the conlract ta the lease and non-lease companents.

[vi) Praperty, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carmiad ak cosl or fair value as indicated, loss, whene applicable, acoumulated deprecialion and any
imparment losses

Frialall propaty
Freahold land and buiklings are shown &l thes fair vakie based on pediodic, bul ad least trennial, valeations by exiesmal independent valsars, kess
subsequent depreciation for buildings

In periods when the freshold land and buidings are not subject 1o an independent vauation, the directars may conduct directors’ valisalions o ensure
the camying amount far tha land and buildings is not matenially different to the fair value,

Increases in the carying amouni asising on revaluation af land and buikdings are recognised in cther comprehansive income and accumulated & the
rpvalimtion surplus in equity. Revaluation decreases thak offsat pravicus increases of the same class of assabs shall ba recognssed in alber
comprehensive incoms undar (e heading of revaluaton surphis. All other decraases are recognised in proft o loss,
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Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Any accumulabed depreciation al the date of the revaluation is esminaled against lhe gross carrying amounl of the asset and tha rat amount is
restated fo the revalued amaunt of ihe assel.

Freshald land and buldings ihal have been contribisted Bt no cost, or for nominal cost, are initially recognised and measured at the fair value of the
asgel ab he date i i aoquined.

Freehold land is not subject to depreciatian
Assels indar constructan

VWiorks in progress ank nol depreciaied untl they reach servios deleery, Whers adsets have separals identbfabls components thal ana ﬂbﬁ{:-tl{l-
megular replacoment. these companants ane assigned uselful ives disbnct from the asset fo which thay relate and are deprecialed accordingly. Ay
axpandiure that increases the sginally assessed capacity or sarvice polantiad of an asset is capitalsed and the raw depreciable ambunt &
depreciabed owar the remaming walul Me of the assel to the conlrolled entty.

Flani and egupman

Plant and equipmani are measuned on the cosi basis and aw theredore carried al cast bess accumulabed depreciation and any accumulated
mparment losses. In he ewent the carrying amount of plant and equipment & greatar than the estmated recoverable amount, he canfying amaunl =
wittien down imemediaiely fo the estimated recoverable amount and impainmeant losses are recogrised in profil or loss. A formal assessment of
recoverable amownt is made when impadmaent indicalces are prasant (refar to Nate {vili) for delads of mpairment).

Plant ard equipsnend that have been contributed a1 na cosl, of far nomingd cosl, are valued and recognised at the fair value of e assel al the dale d
i soguined
infangible assots

Software 5 mitlaly recognised at cosl. Where software is acquined at no cost, or for a nominal cost, the cost is its fair value, as al the dale of
acquision. 11 has a fnile Be and i3 carmed 81 cosl less any accumulabed amomsation and impakment osses. Software has an esfimaled useful life o
bebween cne and frve years. 1L s assessed annisally fof mpairment Odher intangible aasets are anly recogaized n accondance with AASE 138

N et
The depreciable amount af all fioeed assels, including buildings and plan and equipimsant, bul exciuding freehold land, @ depraciated on a siraight ling
basis over the asset's useful e s the anlity commancing from the time the assed is bold ready for use. Leasehold improvemants ana depraciated
e fha sharter of either tha uneepired pariod of the keasa or tha estimated usalul Inves of tha improvemants

The depreciation fhresholds used far sach class of depreciable assals are
Baildirgs - $10,000

Plan and oquipmant - 25,000
Intangible assats - $100,000

The assels’ resikdusl values and useful lives ane reviewsd, and adjustad il appropriale, a1 the end of each reparting periad in accordance wilh ARSE
116 Propeity, Plant and Equipment.

(iains and lossas on disposals ane defermined by comparing procesds with the camying amount. Thesa gains or lesses ane recognised in pralit of laes
i Il pedicd im which they arse. When revalued assets are sold, amounts inclided in the revaluation surplus relafing io that asset are lranslered o
relained earmings.

{vil) Financial instrumenis

Initial recognition and measwerement

Financial assets and financial Eabilities are necognised when the antity becomes a party 1o the conractual provisions fo ithe instrument. For financial
assals. lhes is the date that tha anbéy commiis itsalf iz either the purchase or sale of the asset (Le. trade dade accounting is adophad).

Fnancial msiruments (eocapl for rade receivables) are indsally measured a1 Fair value plus ransaction cosls, excepl where the instrument ks classified
“at fair value thrgugh profil or loss”, in which case ransaclion costs are expensed b profil o |css immedsately, Whers svadabla, quoled prcas @ an
active madkal are used 1o delerine fair value. in other ciroumstances, valuation lechniques are adopbed

Trade receivables am iniially maasured al the iransaction price il the (rade receivables do nol contaln sgnifean Bnancing componant or d the
praclical expediant was appled as specifed in AA58 15 Reveruas from Contracts with Customers
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CoastZzBay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Classification and subsegueni measurement

Fi cod el

Fimancial Babilities are subsequently measured at

= amortised cosl; or

- fair value through profit or loss,

A financial habilily is measured a1 lair value through prohil of leas if the financial labdily &

- @ confingent considerabion of an acquires n a business combiralion bo which AASE 3 Business Combinalions applas,
= bz For trading; or

- initialty designated as fair value through profil or koss,

Al pdher financial liabiktes are subseguently measuned af amortsed cost using he efeciive nlerest method. The effective inbenest malhod |5 8
magthod of calcuiating the amortised cosl of a debl insirument and of allocating inberest expense cwer in profi] or loss aver (he relévani padied

Tha effective interest rade s tha intemal rade of rebum of the financial asset or liabiky. That &, il is the rate thal exacily discounis tha eshimated fulure
cash fiows through the expectad life of the mstramant to the nat carmying amount @l indial recegnilion,

A fnancial Eability is heid for rading if it is

= imcwred for the purpose of repurchasing or repaying in fhe neas farm;

- pan of & portfobio where thene ks an actual patern of shanl-tesm prolit taking; o

- & dedivative finardcial instrument (sxcepl for a derivalive thal is in a Bnancial guarantes conlract of & derivalive thal is in effective hedging
relationships)

The changa in fair valee of the financial iabisty attibutable (o changes in the issuar's credit risk i laken o other comprabanshve income and IS nat
subsequenty reckassified bo prof or loss, Inslead, & is ransberred 1o ratained aamings upon derecogniton of the financial lability,

i taking the change in credil risk in other compiehénsig income enfarges of créales an sooounting msmalch, hen these gains or lossas should be
taken o peodit or loss rather than other comprehansive incoma

A fingnciald Bability cannod be reclassifed
Financiad assals

Financial aasats pre subiseguenlly measied st

» AmoctEad ookl

- fair wales through clher comprahansive ncoma, of
- fair walua through profit or loss.

Measuremen s on the basks of two primary crileria:
- the comractual cash flow characiensbes of the linancial assal, and
« ther business model for managing the inancial assets

A financial asset that meets the folowing conditions is subsequently measured al amortised cast

- tha financial assat & managed solaly 1o colect contractual cash fiows; and

- the comtraciual leams within the Anancial assed ghva rise o cash Aows that ane solaly payments of principal and intarest on the principal ameun
oulstanding on spaciied dates.

A financial assed thal meets the folowing conditions i subsequently maasured ai tair vale lsiowegh obher comprehanaie income:

- i conlractual iems within tha financial asset ghva rise 1o cash flows that ane solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amoun
putsiarding on spacified dates: and

- the business moded for managing the inancial assel comprses both conlraciual cash flows collection and the selling of the financial assat

By defaull, all olher hnancial assels thal do nod mee] the maaturement condibions of amorised ool and Tair value through othed comprahanssaa
income are subsequantly measured al fair value through profit or koss

The antity initaily designates a financlal instrument as measured ai fair valua Bhrough profit or loss if,

- il eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition incansisiency (ofien referred bo a8 an “sccounting mismatch®) thad would
olheraiss arise from measunng assets or kabililies or recognising Ihe gans and los=es on them on different bases,

= it i in acconrdance with tha documenied risk management of investmant strategy and infarmatian about the groupings is documented aparopraledy,
g0 the parfprmancea of the financial kabslity thal is part of a group of financiad labllities or financial assels can ba managed and avaluated cansesienlly
af A fair value basis, and

= it % a hybsid conbract thal containg an embedded derdvalive ihat signiicantly moadifies the cash Nows olhenwsise required by ihe conlract
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Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 Juns 2024

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The initiad designation of financial instruments to measure 84 fair valua throwgh peofit or loss is 8 one-tima aplien on indial classfication and is
iravacaiie wnbl Bhe linancial assed B deresognised.

Equily Msfrimenls

Al initial recognitson, &s long 88 tha equity instnumen is ot hekd far rading of nol a contingent considaraton recognisad by an acquires in & business
combination to which AASE 3 apples, the contralled enlity made an irevocable elaction o measune any subsequant chamges in falr vale of the
equily msiremans inother comprabensne incoma, whie tha dividend revenus recesssd an endarkying squily ingirumenis mmesimant will shil ba
recognisad in prodit or lss

Regular way purchazas and sales of financial sssels ame recognised and derscognised & salllemant dale in accordanca will the controliad antily’s
accounting polcy

Derecognition

Drarecognition refers o e removal of 3 previously recogrised financial asset or financial Babilty from the statemant of financial positan
Darpcognifion of financial Kabiilies

& liabilty is derecognised when it i extnguished (i e, when the obligation in the coniradd is dischanged, cancelled or gupines), An gxchange of an

extating financial liabdity for 8 new one with substantially modified ferms, or 8 substandial medification lo tha terms of a financial liabdity, is reated as
an extingulshment of the existing habdily and recognition of a rew finamncial liakdiby,

The diflenence batwean the carrying amaunl of the financial iabilty derecognised and (he consaderalion paid and payabla, including ary non-cash
assats fransfermed or labiltios assumed, is recognised in profit or loss

Darecognition of firamcial assels
A financial assed is derecognised when the holdes's contrachual rights to its cash flows expires. o the assel is bransfarred in such a way thal all the
risks and reveands of ownarship ana substantially ranshared.

Al the lelloedng eriefia nead ba be salisfed for the derecoghition of a linandsal assel:

- tha right ko recetes cash fiows from the asset has axpired or been ransferned,

- all risk and rewards of pwnership of the assat have bean substantially translered. and

- iive endity na longer conbrols the assat {Le, has mo practical abikly b make unitateral decision to sell the asset to a thind party)

On darecognibon of a financal assat meassuned &l amonized cosl, the diffevenca batween the assal's canying amount and the sum of the
congidaration recaved and recaivable is recogrised in profit of loas,

On darecognition of 8 detit instnement classified as fair value throwgh ather comprghansive incomae, e cumulative gain or loss previausty
accumustated in e investmeant revaluaton fesens is reclassifed to prof or loss.

On derscognition of an investment in equity which the entity elected to ciassify under fair value thraugh ofther comprehensive income, the cumulative
gain or less pravicusly sccumulated in the investmenls revaluation resanve is not neclassifind o profit or loss, bul & ransfened o retained eamings.

Irypairment

The anlily recognises a loss allowancs for expecled cradil losses on:

- financial assets thal are measured al amondised cosl or Tair valus through other comprebensiae incomes;
- lpase receivables.

- condrach assats (e.g, amoun due Trom cusbomers under constnucton conlracis);

- lgan commitrnents 1hal are nol measuned at @ valua throegh predil or loss, and

- fmancial quarsntes contracts thal ade nat measured al faif value Bioogh pralil or loas,

Loss allvwance is nol recognised fon
- fnancial assats measured al fair value through profit of kass, or
« Bquity indlruments measuned al fair value lhiough alher comprehensive incoms.

Expacted credil losses are the probatdity-aaighbed estimate of credit losses over the eapecled life of a firancial instrument. A credd 1085 i the
diffarence tabwean all contractual cash ficws that are dee and a8 cash fiows expecied to be recedved, all discounted af the original effective inlerest
rale of the financkal inalumeni.




Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the yvear ended 30 June 2024

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The enlity uses the following approachas to impairment, as applicable under AASE §
= tha gerarad approach;

- tha simpified appaoach; _

- tha purchased or griginated credi-impaired appeoach; and

- hevar credil risk eperalional simphiscaton

Gemaral approach

Linder the gantral approach, a1 each repodting petod, the enbly assesses whather the financial instrumants are creds-impained, and.

= if the credst risk af tha fnancial nsirument has incroased significantly sinca initial recogniticn, the entity measures 1hea loss allowance of tha inancal
instrumanis at an amount egual 1o tha ifelime expected credit loeses; and

- if thera is no significant increase in credit fsk sinca inibial recegnatean, (e antity measenes the loss allowance far tkat financial matnement al an
amourd equal 1o 12-month expacted credd lossas.

Simpdihed apprcach

The simpiified approach does not requing racking of changas in credit risk al every repafing perod, bul instead requires the recognition of fetima
axpactad credit koss at all tmes

This apgroach is apphzable ta:

= trade recoivables. and

- leasa recalvablos

In meaasuring the expecled credit kass, & provision matri for rade receivables s used, iaking inlo consldaraton varisus data to gat |o an especied
cradd oas (Le. diversily of Bs customer base, appropriata groupings of s historical loss axperiancs, ale).

Purchased or orniginaled credif-mpaired spproach

For purchased o onginaled credd-impaired financial assets, the genedal approach is modified such that at the reporting date, an enlty shall enly
mecognisa the cumulative changes in lifelime expacted credst losses since inilial recogrebion as a loss aliowance, The esxpecied cradit lsses far
purchasad or erginatad credil-mpaired financial assets shall be discouniad using ke credit-adjusted effective interes! raba debarmined al initial

Evidence af credil impainment inclsdes:

- gagnifican| financial difficully of tha issuor or bormower,

- @ breach of contract {a.g. defaull or pasl dus evenl);

- @ lender has granted 1o the bofrowear & Concession, due (o he borrewer's financial difhicully, 1hat the lender would not cthensise consadar,
- fhe likelihaod thal e barewes will enter bankiupbsy of olhér inansial rearganisalion; and

- the disappearance of an active markel foe the financial assed bacause of financial difficullios,

Loy crondil nisk aparadional simpdficalion spproach

If & financial assat s daterminged to have low credit risk at the initial reporting date, the enlity assumas thal the credil risk has not increased
significantly singa inilial recognition and, accordingly, can conlinue o recognise & loss alowanee of 12-manth expected credit lss.

In grdar ba make such a determanation that fhi financial asset has low credi risk, the entity apples its internal credi risk ratings or athor
e thiod ol e weing & globally comparabla dafnilion of low cradit riak.

A financial assel is consadaned o hawe o Grodt risk il

- thare s a bow risk of default by the bonmowear,

- 1ha bodrowar has a slrong capacily bo meat s contraclual cash Now oblgabions in the naar enm; and

- adverss changes in economic and business conddons in the langer lerm, may, bul nat necessarily, reduce (he ability of B Bormaver o Tl s
contraciual cash Niow obigations

A financial assel is ol considened o canmy low credd fsk merely due to exislencs of collaleral, or béecause a bonfower kas a lower risk of detaull than
thay risk inharent in the financial assats, or relative bo the credit sk of the jursdiction in which il operabes.

Recagnition of expected eredit loases in linandial alabermsents

A wach reporbing date, the anfity recognises tha movemant in the kess allowance as an impaEment gan or kass 0 the slaternent of prafit ar leas and
cihar comprabensive incoma,

Thea carrying ampund of financial assals maasured st amonized cosl includes tha loss aliowance reating b thal assed
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fzsels measured at faw valee through ciher comprebensie income arg recognised al fair value with changes in Fair value recognised in ofher
comprehensia mcoma, Tha amaunt in relation to change in credit risk is fransfemed from othar comprehensive incoms o profit or loss al every
repodtng panod

For linascial assats that are unfecognised (e.g. kban commitmenis yet o be drewn, financal guarantees), 8 provisson for koss aliowance i created in
this stalement of financial position to recogniss the lss allbwance

{will) Impairmant of assots
A the end of pach reporing period, the conirolled enfity reviews the carying amownts of its tangible and intangible assets io delamming whathar thena
is any indication hat thosa assels have boen impaired. If such an indication awisls, tha recoverable amaunt of thae assel, being the higher of the

assel's fair valus less costs of disposal and value in use, is compared 2 the assel’s carmying amount Any axcess of tha asset’s canrying amount over
its recovesable amount s recopnised in peodfil or loss

Wihedse the assets ane ned held primanly for thede ability bo genaraba net cash inflows — thal is, they ane speciaksed assets hald for continuing usa of
i Service capacily — thi recovierable amounts ans expacted |o be mabarally the same a3 la valus,

Whena it is not possible (o estimate te recoveratle amound of an individual assed, the conbralied enity estimates the recoverable amount of e cash-
genedating urel to which the sssat belongs. Where an impainmeant loss on a revalued indindual asset s daenlified, this is recognised againg? tha
revaluabion swplus in respact of the same class of aszal to the axtan that the mpairmend loss does not excead the amound in the revaluation surplus
tor thal class af adsal

{ix} Trade and other payables
These amounts represent Esbilties for goods and services provided Lo the conlrolled antity prior to the end of the finandial year and which are urpaid,

Drue (o thair shot-benm nabure, they ane measwuned at amortised cost and are nol discaounted, Thie amounts ate unsecuned and ane usually paid within
30 days of recognifion,

{x} Contract liabilities

Caniract kabdilies repressn] the conlrollad entity's ablgalion to ransher gocds or senvices 1o 8 cuslomer and ane recegnisad when 3 cushomar pays
consideration, of when the conirolled ently recognises a receivable io reflec il uncondional rghl bo consderalion (whichewver i eartier) before e
conlrolbed entity has transharned tha goods or servioes fo the customier

{xij Employes benefits

Sharf-lafm amployes banaflts

Prowision B made for tha antity’s ebbgaton for shon-ierm employes banefits. Shor-lerm employes benefits are benaefits. (clhar than barmanation
benalits) that are expacied bo be satfed wholly within 12 meaths sfier the end of the annual reparting peried in which the employees render tha relabed
service, inchuding wages, salares, annual leave and sick lgve. Shom.berm employse bensfits are measured ot (he {undiseounted) smaunts expacted
iz ba paid when the obligation is setfied

Priar hislogy indicales thal on average, sick leave laken each reponting period is less than the emillement acerued, This s expacted o conbinus in
future pariods. Accordingly, it s unlikely that existing accumulabed entillements will be ubid by employees and no liabilty lod unused Sick leava
anlitlements is recognised. As sick leave is non-vesting. an expense is recognised for this leave as it & taken

All superannuation contributions ang axpensed in the pariod in which they are paid or payalble. Superannuation is paid in accordance with tha
Suparannusbon Guaranios (Adasstration) Acf 1692 (s amanded). Thana ane no defined banafit schamaes.

Thi contralled enbity pays premums b WorkCover Queensland in respect of #s cbligalions for smployes compensalion. Workers compansation
insurance & a consequonce of empkrying employees and an entfiemant o employees should any claim be recognised as a persanal injury clam
Howerver, i is nol counted in gn ampleyea's botal remunaration package. It is not employes benafits and is recognised soparatily as employes felabed
expensas. There wara no recagnised claims for the reponting year (2023 ml).

Oher lang-tanm employes benalds

The liability for annual leave and long semvice inave not axpecied o be seflled within 12 months of the repording date are measwied al ihe present
value of expected future paymeants bo be made n respect of serices pravided by employess up o the reporting dase using the projecied unil credil
method. Considaration i green o expected lulure wage and salary levels, expenence of emplayes depatures and pedcds of serdce. Expached future
paymants are discounbed wsing market yiekls at the reporting dase on national government bonds wilh barns 1o maburty and cwrency that match, as
closaly as pessible, the estimated future cash cutflows. Oncosts such as 17 5% leawve loading and the future Superanfualion guarinlss pedcantajpes
are appled as panl of tha caloulation of ke labikty for annual and long service leave as redavant
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Long Service Leave Schema: Qleave provides & ponable long service leave schema for workers in Queensland's community sénacas indusiry that
came in foree on 1 January 2021, Under the Commumity Senvces ndusfry (Porfehie Long Sarvice Leawa) Act 20620, employess can acciue lbng
sarvice lpave benefils based on their service acrss the communily serioes industry, ped just e langlh of Lme spent wsth an ndividual emphoyer,

Thia contraliod entify retaing te employes's kbng service leawa babdity acerued up 1o and inclisding 31 December 2020, Afler this dase, the contnalied
entity immadiately axponses io profit and loss the accrued leave and makes a cash payment bar the respective amount lo each individual employes
socount in Oleave. YWhen an emploves takes long sorvice leave, tha controllod ontity is requined bo make paymant o the employee in accordance
wih currenl pay raes and the relevant award raquirements. Howewver, a claim by the conilrolled entity will b made 1o Clleave for any portion of the
paryrmen] thal was acerued for e amployes post 1 Januany 2021,

Esch quatar, tha controllad entity submits & raturn {in arrears) i Oleave dotailling the employee's wages and pays a levy lo QOlaave. Whan the
empkyes has seven yean of serdca recordad with OLeave, they are entitied to 6.1 weeks of long senice leave paid by Oleave. Emgloyses who
ware par of the conlrolled enily priod to 1 Januany 2021 have their abgibde senice panod date recognised by Cleave. Employees who comiménoe
with tha controfled entity on ar aflef 1 January 2021, &re asked if they already have a Olaave sccount relevanl b the community sarvices industry, Iif
thay hava not. they are regsdared a5 a new employes wilh the scheme from the date of commencemant

Theare &= o sel dollar amount for kang servics keawve payments with Cibeave. Cloave calculaée the payment amaunt when the conbroled entity looges
the claim as rebevant for (he individual employes. It is based on the employes’s wage and fhe number of years they have recorded wilh Qleave al the
tire af payment

Therefors, o kabdily B reconded for long sendce leava that has been sccned for employeas from 1 January 2021, The controlied enlity’s habisty
reflects only the pardion up io and including 31 Decembar 3030, This balance will aroda aver fima as it is |aken,

The conlrolled enlity's obligatens. for leng-term employes banafits e presanied a5 non-curren liabiltes in #s stabement of financial pasiion, excepl
whare the enlity does ned lhave an eheandilicnal nght ta defer salfermant for at kast 12 months aftar the and of the reporting penod, in which cass (e
chligations are présenied as curnent Babites,

{ii) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenuas, expensas and assels am recognisad net of the amound of GST, except whese the amount of G5T incurned i not recoverabla from the
Austrakan Taxation Office (ATO). Recaivables and payabies are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivabla or payable. The net ameunt of
GET recoverable fiom, of payable Lo, the ATO i included with altser receivables or payables in the stalemant of financial position

Cash fiows ane presented on & gross basss. The GST components of cash fiows arising rom mvesting or financing actuities, which are recoverable
from or payable to tha ATO, are presented as oparabing cash lows inclsded in receipls from customers or paymanits to suppliars.

Commitmands and contingencies, if relevant, ans disclased et of the amownl af GST recoverable from, of payable 1o, the ATO,
{xiii} Income Tax

A5 the controlled entity i a charitable institution in terms of subsection S0-5 of the Incame Tax Assesseml Act 1297, as amended, IL is examgt from
paying income fax

{ziv¥] Provisions

Proviglons afe recognised when the conlrolled antty has a present (legal or construclive) abBgation as @ result of a pasd evenl, il is probable the
conlrolked entity will ba reguired o selhe Lhe obhgaton, and a refiable astimate can ba made of tha amaund of the obfigation. The amount recagnised
a5 a provision is the best esbmate of the consdesation reguired 1o seflle tha present obligaton at the reporting data, taking into accounl the risks and
uncartainties surrcunding the obligation.  Pravisions recognised represant e beal sslimates of the amounts requiied o 2altk the obligation al the end
of the meporting pericd,

{x¥} Issund capital
Shares mie classifed 88 squity. The ewee of shares and cpbans ane governad by Section S of tha Canstitubion of Coast2Bay Housing Group Limied.

{xwl) Dividends
The controlled entiy does not pay dividends fo sharahokiers pursuant to section 5.7 (e} of the Consfilutan of Coast2Bay Housing Group Limaed.

(xwii] Comparative figures
Whan required by Accounling Standards, comparafe figures have been adjusted bo conform b ehangas in presentation for 1he curent financial year
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(&) Critical accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of (b financal stalsmants requeres judgaman), estimaton and assessment of assumgplicns thal alfect (ks reposted amounts in the
fnancial slabemenls. These s evalsated an all levels. Basis can include hisloncal expeience, curend rends, ecancmic fackors, axpactations of
future events, and an approach to both reasonakbdity or probability as relevand b the isgus of citcumstance as al the repaiting dale. Judgements.,
aslimates and vanous assumplions may nod agres b the futee acteal resull and tharefore do have a sk of causing a material adjusimenl o the
carryng amounls of assets and kablilies wihin the next financial year, Accordingly, key approaches are dischosed below

Hey estimates

{i] Valuation of freehald land and buildings

The lreehald land and buldings were independently valued 81 30 June 2023 by Heren Todd White. The valualion was based on the fair value kbss
caosts of disposal. The cifical assumplicns adopled in délermining the valuation includéd the lacation of the land and buildings, the current strong
demand for land and buildings in the area and recent sakes data for simitar propertios. The valuation resulied in a revaluation mcremant of $11.15m
being recognised for the year endad 30 Juna 2023, Tha rennial appreach of revalualion will nesl occw pror to 30 Juna 2006

The conbralied enbity peforms iennial revalualions of land and buidings. In periods when the freehold land and buldings are ot subject o an
independent valuation, an astessment i pedoimed 1 ansure the canrying amaunl fod e land and bulkEngs i not matedally diffaran ba the faer
walua,

Increasas in the camying amaunt arsing on revaleaton of land and buildings are recognised in other comprahansiea income and accumulaled in the
‘ase] rvvaluaban reserg’ in eguily. Revaluaton decreases that offsel previcus increasas of the same class of assals shall be recognisod in “olher
comprehansive income’ a5 a revaluation suiplus. All sther decreases are recognisad in profil of loss,

Any accumulabed depreciaton at the date of the revalualion s eliminaled against the gross carmying amount of the asset ard the net amount is
nestated b the revalued armaunt of the assel.

{iip Usaful lives of property, plant and equipmant

As descrbed in Mole 1 {d) (i), thie conlrolled enlity reviews the estimated useful laas af property, plant and equipment at tha end of aach annual
reparing pariod

Key judgements

(i) Perfarmance obligations under AASE 15

Pursusnt 1o AASE 15 Revenue from Coniracts with Customers as detailed in Mote 1 (d}{i), as part of ienlifyng a performance oblgatan, the
peomise must be sufficiently specific 1o ba able to determine when the abligation is satafied. Management exercises juggemant to datarmne whesher
tha promise is sufficantly spacific by considaring any conditions specified in fhe arangement, explct of implicit, regarding the promised goods or
sarvices. In making this assessment. management includes the natured typa, cosd value, quantity and the pared of rensier relaled to the goods ar
sefvicEs promised

(iv) Lease tarm and Option to Extend under AASE 16

The lease tarm is defined as the mon-cancallable period of & lease logether with both peviods coverad by an oplion to exlend the lase § lhe lEsses 8
reasonably cenan o exercise that aplion; and alss pediods covered by an option o barminabe the kease i the kesses i3 reasonably cedain nol to
gmarciss lhai optice, Tha eptions that anre reasonably gong o be exercised is a key management judgement thal tha enlity will make. The contralied
entity deleemines tha likelinass io exercisa the oplions on & lease-by-lease basis leoking a1 varous Teciors such as which assets are sirategic and
which are key bo luture sirategy of the antty.

ivi Employen banefits

For the purpese of measurement, ASSE 115 Employes Benefils defines oblgations for shorl-lerm employes banefils as obligations expected to be
seitied wholly befoce 12 months after ihe end of the annusl reponting period in which the employees rendar the ralated senice. As the controlled enhity
expects that most employess will nal use all of thesr annual eave enlitements in e Same year in which ey are sarmead of duning tha 12-month
period that follows (daspile an informal indermal policy $hat requires annual leave o be used when B or mone weeks are accrped), the Greclors beleve
thal obligations for annual leave entilements salishy the dafinifion of other long-term emgloyes benelils and, therafare, am required o be measured &l
the presenl value of the expected fulure payments to be mada o employeas

{vi) Allpwance for expected credit losses

Thie allewance lor expected credd losses assassment requires a degres of estimation and judgemant. N is based on the abme expacled cradd loas,
grouped based on days cverdue, snd makes assumplicns e allocale an overall expacted credd koss rate for each group, These assumplions inchude
mecant gxperience and historical coliection rades
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[vii} Loase term

The lease term is a s;gnicant component in e measurement of Balh the righl-ol-use awsets and lease Eability. Judgement is exarcised in
datermining whathes thane i reasonable cedainty that an cpticn o extend the Mase o purchase te undedying assel will be exercaed, of an optan o
terminata tha leasa will not be exercised. when ascaraining tha pariods to be incheded in the lease term. In deteminng the lease ledm, all fsels and
circumatances thal creaba an econcmical incandie i axercise gn exiension apiion, or nol o exercise a lermination cplion, are considened at (he kease
cidTemEncameant data. Factors considaned may includa the iImponance of the assal i the conbrolied anlity's operations; comparison of terms and
conditions lo prevailing marked rabes; incunrence of ssgnifsant penalies. exslence of signilicant kasehold mprovemants; and the costs and disruplion
io replace the assel. The conirolled enily reassesses whether il is reasonably carlain bo exercise an exiension opbon, of Rol exsrcise 8 barminakon
opbion, if thera is a significant ewent or significant change in circumstances. Thase are pedomed ndividua®y on a lease-by-ledse basis in secordance
wilh AA5E 16 Loases that includes decisions on business sirateqy in respact of the relevant curmeni or expoecied fubure crcumstances.

if) Economic dependence

During the fnancial yaar, thare has boen significant new funding approvals Tor capilal pregrams that have commenced heough fomalsed Capital
Funding Agresments {CFA) with the Queensland Governmenl. Ghan thesa programs ane condnuing b the nest financial year, at the dabe of this
repofl, the Board of Direciors had no reagon 1o Dekeve thal this funding will nol continue pursuanl i curman] legal msiremeants.

(g} Fairvalue of assets and labilities

Tha antity measures soma of its assats and liabilties at fair value on sither a recurting oF non=recuring basis. depanding on the requirements of the
apphcabia Accounting Standard. *Fair value® ks tha prica the anlity would recebva o sell an asset oo would have o pay o ransfer a liabiliby o @n
afdetly (L& undorcad) transacton betwean indepandent, knowladgeable and wiling madkel paticipants at the measuremant date.

A fair value is a market-based measws, the closest equivalen] chsereable market pricing nformabion is used o dejermine fair value. Adjustmeants to
maskat valsas may b mads having mgard bo the characterislics of tha specific asset or labilty. The fair values of assels and labilibes that ane nol
traedied in & active market are deteemined using o or mone valuation technbgues. These valuation techniques mamimise, to the extenl possible, the
use of pbaservable marked data

To the estant possible, maroel infoemation i extractad from the principal markat for the asset or iability (e, the markel wilth the greatest volume and
kel of activily Tor the assal or Rabidiy). In the abaencs of auch & makel, marked infarmatan @ estracted frem the most advantagacus markal
available 1o the enlily al the end of the reporting pericd (i.e. the marked hat madmises e receipts Trom the sale of the sssst or minimises the
payments made 1o iransfer the liahily, after considaring Iransaciion costs and ransport Costs)

For non-financial assets, the fair value measuereman akso takes inba accound a markel parbeipant’s sbility bo wse the assel in ks heghast and besl wse
or io sed it 1o ancthar masket participant that would use the assef in its highest and bast wse

Thi Tair walue of liabilities and the entity's own equity instruments (if ary) may be valued, where thens is no obsenable markel price in relation 1o the
ransfer of such financial instrumants, by reference to chsereabla markel infeemation whera such instrumanis are held as assets. Whaene this
inleamation is nol avaiable, ofhes valualion technigues s adopbed and, wheee significant, are dalaiiad in the respeciive noda fo tha Snancial
stalements
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(h) Mew and amended accounting standards adopted
AASE 2021-2: Amendments ko AusiraBian Accounfing Standards = Disclosure of Accounting Policies and Definition of Accounting Esfimates

The Erdity adopled AASE 2021-2 which smends AASHE 7, AASHE 101, AASE 108 and AASE 134 to require disclodure of “material cosunting poboy
infosmation™ rather than “sagnificant acoounting policies™ in an ently's financial stalemaents. 1t a0 wpdabas AASE Practcs Stabement 2 b provide
guidance on the application of the concapt of matenaliy o accounting policy disclosures

The adoplion of the amandment did ncl have a matenal impact on tha financial stalemants.

AASE 2021-6 Amendmends o Ausiraban Accombng Stancarss -~ Disclkaswe of Accounfing Poboss: Tier 2 and Obher Awsfralan Accoumbng
Sfandards

AASE 2021-6 amends AASE 1049 and AASE 1060 to requiie disciosun of ‘matenal accounting polcy mfarmation’ rather Ehan “sighificant accaunling
policies” in an enlity’s financial slalements. It also amends AASE 1084 o refllec] the updated terminology used in AASHE 101 as a resull af AASE 2021-
2, The adopticn of the emendment did nol have B matenal fmpact on the financial statemanis.

AASE J0T2-T. Editarial Cormeclions o Avslralion Accounding Standavds and Repeal of Superseded aod Redndan Slandands
AASHE 20227 makes edilpsial compciions i varicus Ausiralian Accounling Standards and AASE Praclice Statemant 2. |t also Tomally repeals the

suparsaded and redundant Australian Accounting Standards sed cut in Schedules 1 and 2 of thes standard. The adapsion of tha amandment did nod
hawa & material impact on the financial statemeants,
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Note 2 Revenue

Conaalidatad
2024 2023
] £
Rovanus rom condracis with cusfomers
Rant C 300 BET B 392 822
Faes 818 554 B0, 733
1020821 S0 855
Cithey e
Grants i) 67,215,650 18,555 702
Incenthees i) - Epr s 1 31 581
Spansarships and donations (i) 129,115 703,893
Olher sundry revanue 57,425 23,020
67,589 905 20614204
Total Revanue ?‘.I'l'.rHﬂ % u,m,m
Cither Revenus
Grants ({}

Granls reconrded &8 revenud e the resull of the contract obligafion bemng satishied in acoordance wilh AASE 15 Revnes Fam Conlracls walfy
Carglpmprs with tha redavand provides, Thase funds are recognised in accordance with coniract milestones o othar barms and conditicns that salisfy
the contracl obligalon. Plaase alto refér lo Mobe 9 for Granls funds recaned in advance held as a conbract ability on reporting dabe and axpéckalions
of recognion in fubure years,

The Enlity has aao received capital granl for constuction aclivilies wsed [ furber its objeetives. As consistent with Note 1, the grant i recognised as
ncome as he Enlity consirects the buiding under AASE 1058, Income is recogrised based on the cosl imcwired ta dabe relative 1o lolal expacted
cosis o ba incusred as this measure is axpacied (o reflect the Enlity's progress ipwards completion

Consolidated

Ravenue from govsrnmant grants, other grants, and incentives H;H HI':!-
Ciparaling grants

Queenaland State Govamnment - Commundy Renlal Schame 3217 802 2,735,558
Quesnsland State Governmant - Community Managed Head Leasa 532 224 G0, TaE
Queensiand State Governmant - Houging Support - Batier Togather Program 461 851 21,528
Queensiand Stabe Government - Employer Boost ApprenBoeship 3,60 51,755
Cueensland State Govamment - Maamvhile Lse Program 0 B 581
Quesnskand State Government - Homes for Homes Pregram 1} (3,543
Queansland State Govarnmmant - Gambling Communsty Banelit Fund 45 485 a
Local Government - Sunshing Coast Council 31 441 ]
Locad Gevarnrment - Morgton Bay Regional Council - Tenants' Chidren's Chrisimas Appeal a 2,405
st S, 05 5,000
Tolal operating grants 4412 AB4 3,740,873
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Note 2 Revenue (continued)

Consolidated

Ravenus from government grants, other grants, and incentives (continued) 024 2023

% 5
Capital granis
Cusensland Siate Governmenl - Consbuclion works - Bearwak 1] 7015 5841
Cueanstand Siate Gevernrmenl - Congbruction woeks - Yanding B2 404 G, 7a1 Eoe
Queansiand Siste Gevarmmen - Construction works - Miimba 5,809 485 03,853
Cusensland State Governmaent - Construction works - Banya 2494 030
Cusensland Siate Governmenl - Conabruclion works - Domestic and Family Viekanoe (DFV) 219,045 1,508,435
Clusensland State Govermmenl - Construction works - Coanoy 8125 0
Cusansland Siale Gowermmaen - Propery Acquisiion 52,852 045 o
Philandhropic Graris - RISE 2 - Bendigo Bank 500,000 85,000
Tota capital grants 62,803,184 15,814,829
Total grans 67,215 1 Tz

A repocting date, conlrscts either have expired of hivve ool been rensgotiabed lof granl pragrams. Hawewar, whete 8 conlract has bean sigred for
futuro funding, and thal funding is certain at reparfing date, the following lable details the expected grant revenue (hal is Gkely to be recognised in the
fubure retaled § tha parformance oblgations of that contract.  The fotal does include an aparafonal compenent of $2 19K thal was idenbified as
agproved oparatonal income under the capital funding agreemeants (2023 $120k}

2025 2026 Total
$ E ] ]
Crueansland Stabe Government - Comemunity Rental Schems (i) 3,530,986 Q 3 530,958
Crueansland Siale Govermmani - Affordable Housing for Woman OFY Inftialive (3) 637,041 0 G637 041
Cuwennsland Skale Govemment « Construction works - Mifimba (i) 6,516,772 o 651677
Cuesnsland State Governmenl - Conatruction wedks - Banya (i) 13,248,932 1] 13,248,932
Cueansland State Govermment - Acguisition - HIF1T NRAS Acquisition Program [v) 234,000 ] 34,000
Cueensland State Govermment - Consfruction works - DFV () 3 437 050 718,125 4 155175
Gueensland Stabe Govemment - Consiruction works - Cooray (vl 1,462,775 8,642 411 10,105,185
Cmensland Stale Govemmaent - Acguisilion - NRAS Purchase Initiathee (v 56,518,250 B8, 750 57,195,600
Federal Governmenlt - Construction works - Sate Placas nclusion Round (ix) 5,259,860 ] 5,260 850
Tertal futire years grant funding 36 10,0349, 285 100,882,522

(i) & bwoeyear contract i in place wilk the Queensland Slale Goverrsmant Tor ke Comsunty Raenal Schame. This commancead 1 Juby 3023 and
concludes 30 Jung 225

{ii} @ ore yeae contract with the Quesnsland State Government o manage 20 privats head leases with an aim b0 ransiboning peaphe 1o loagar
iedm housing. Occupants can ondy be lhose mpacied by domestic and family vickenca

(i} & Capital Funding Agraemsant with tha Quearsland State Gowarnment fos the purchase of and and constrection activilies in Mirimba was
execuled on 28 June 2022 and subsequenlly vaned in 2023, Construction actiity is well undarway with expecled complation during 2024-25. The
capite! value i $12.73 million (excl GST)

[iv) & Capital Funding Agreement with the Queenakand Stabe Gavermmenl bor the purchase of land and conslruction acivitas in Barya was

axaculad on 26 Octobar 2003 and subsequently varied in 2024, Construction activity is well undersay wilh expecied completon dunng 2024-25.
Tha capital value is $15.33 milkon {ececl. GST).
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Note 2 Revenue (continued)

{¥} & Capital Funding Agreamant with the Qusensland Stats Governmeant for the purchags of vanous established dwelings in Scuthside and
Maroochydora was executed on 27 May 2024, Semlaments are axpactad 1o ba hnalised in early 2024-25. Tha capétal walue & 51,70 milkan (excl
GST).

{wi} & Capilal Funding Agreemant wilh the Guesensland Stale Govermment for the purchase of land and conslnection acthites i Bamya and
Hoasavike was execuled on 12 March 2024, Congtruchon actaly & oracasl i commande in 2024-25 and ba completed in 2025-28. Tha capital
value 5 54 79 million (el GST).

{wii]} a Capilal Funding Agreemant with the Cusensland State Gowernment for the purchase of land and construction actiaties in Coaray was
auacuied on 23 May 2024, Construction achvity is forecas| b commanca in 2025-26, The capital valus is $13.31 millon (excl. GET),

{wiii) & Capital Funding Agresment with the Queensiand Stabe Govemment for the purchase of various established dwelings in Sippy Dawns,
Southside, Peregian Sprngs, Taigum, Gympae, Horth Lakes, Chinlon and Mogsaville was execubed on 26 June 2024, Setfiements ane axpeched (o
be finalised in August 3024, Tha capital value & 55,84 millon {excl. G5T). Furhar capilal funding agreemaents for additional balches af
acquisdions ae expecied (o be execuled progressively for 2024-25 up 1o tha total program value:

{ix] the Austrakan Federal Govemmend issweed a lelber on § June 2034 approving a grant application for the purchase of land and conslaechon
acivities for DFY undar the Safe Places Program. A grant agreament 5 axpacted 1o be executed and constructon activity commence in 2024-25,
The capital walue is forecast to be 55 26 milion (excd G5T)

The Entity is dependent on the Quesnsland Slate Government fof some recurtén funding used 1o operate the busingss (ilims (1) & (i) abdave Al
thar dade of thes rapor, the Board of Direclors has no reason o beleve the Governmant wil nod conbnue o suppoet tha Enbity,

Consolidated
2024 2023

$ 5
Incowtives (1)
Cusansiand Sate Govermeman - Mational Rental Affcrdability Schame 33,082 69,488
Commomyealih Governmaent - Maticnal Rental Affordabilty Schemea 87,574 200,302
Commonmwealih Governmeant - Malional Desability Insuwrance Schams 57 055 53,210
Total Incentives 187,715 331,581
Sponsorship (1)

Ther @nby has thees faundations thal defing rules associabed with fundraising for specific actviles. These ars the Coast?Bay Housat) Foundaman, the
Balter Tegethar Foundalicn and the RISE Fourdaton Refer Node 4 for summary of fundraising aclivity,

Mote 3 Depreciation
Gonsolidated
Mot 2024 a0z
] ]
Dapeeciation - Leases 625,857 1595 068
Dapeacaation - Proparty, plant and eguipment 7 1,258,744 5012
Tolal depraciation 1,885,700 94,101




CoastZBay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Consolidated
2024 013
5 5
Cash at bank 12,012,744 B.654 688
Truest account 356,420 283,117
Cash on depasit 2,010,962 10,035
Total cash and cash equivalents 14,379,326 8,947,541

Cash iz cash on hand and demand depaslls. Cash equivalents sre shar-temn, highty Bquid investments that are readily cornarible o known amounts
of cash and which are subject 1o msignilicant rsk of changes in value, This includes cash on hand, cash at bank, and tarm deposits malsring vilkin

threa months from the date of acquison

Cash held as 'resticted idenlifias thal il is eilher sed aside lor a speciflic purposa, has been recatved in advance lor b specific purpose and i io be
redurried 1o the prosider should il not be fully spend (.9 contract Exbililies) of, the cash is eilhear nalicnaly or legally administenad o ted tza
confractual oblgation. 1 is not availabla for genaral business wse, This cash is usually held in a special account so it remaing separate from the rest

ol the controlied enlily’s cash and equivalents. A semmary i below,

Consolidated
Mot 2024 1023
5 ¥

Rasinciod
Trust account (i) 358,420 817
Brokarage fund (&) 3827 2048
RISE 2 Foundasion Fund (i) 100 Ghd 947
Conlract funds kheld - 8,149 GBE5 1,463,850

8,510,331 2,303,812
Uinresticled ()
Db 5,888 595 6644 028
Tkl eash and cash equivalents 14,379,326 H,947,841

(i} Tinust accounl furds are represented as hedd ' tnest for cliants and are managed ina separabe bank accounl. Cash held i@ for & paymsan due on
demand when oblgatons ane salislied. As a result, the payments due are reporied &5 & current lability as thay ane nod ewnad by the conlrolled enbly.
Thar trust account is managed in accordanca with the Agenfs Financral Adminizirelon Act 2074 .

(i) Brokerage and RISE 2 Foundallen Funds are hakd in separate bank accounts. The funds s raised for specilic purpases, The parenl and
subsidiary enlilies are both pubss benevolant mabitulicns and regislened chanties with Deductible Gift Recipland (DGR) status with the AT,

(i) Uninestriched cash is avalable for business purpases. There are some obligalicns in respect of the assignmeant of thasa funds if thay are to be

usad outsida of normal business oparations,

Seummary of fundralsing activity FJ:EIE I"i B‘:::I:.“ 1.
§ ¥ %

Opening balance 1 July 2023 554,907 2,048 557045
Daonaons 137 B4 T 172,553
Philanhropic Grants 45,405 20,000 85,455
Transfers (4,987) 4,997 o
Laga:

Fund ralsing expenses 133,811} (13, 206) (46,817)

Capdal works {695 143) i {555, 143)

Allpcation of personal granis o beneficiaries (4.425) (42,5435 (47 368)
Closing balance 10 June 2024 104 5625 5,728

* includes unspent donnatean fiom the Knights of the Southern Cross of 51,797 not hald within separate Brokerags Bank aocount
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Note 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)

RIZE -Hml:qr. Fund 1|
Summary of fundraising activity Fﬂ"wf :M bt L
5 5 §
Opening balance 1 July 2022 10,532 108 10,641
Danatons 118 680 409 152759
Phitanthrepic Grants 585000 ] 585,000
Lsgs:
Fund rasing expenses [23,820) (3. 464) [27.2403)
Capital works {135, 288) ] {135,356)
Alocation of personal grants o benaficianes 0 {2BETE) (28 676)
Closing balance 30 Jumne 2023 554,937 2048 557045
Note 5 Trade and Other Receivables
Consalidated
2024 2023
% £
Trada rescaivables 438 832 L
Leas: allowisncs for expecied chadil loss e (110.902) (66, 551)
Oihar receivables 405 BR4 4TEALT
Prepayments 404 176 E42 500
Total trade and other receivables 'lﬂ,!lﬂ 1,420,703
Thes @nbity's narmal eredil berm s 30 days
Note 6 Right-of-use Assets
Tha Entiy's leasa porifelio includes bolh propesty koases and plant and equipmeni leases
AASE 16 redated amaeunts recogaised in the balance shael are as follows:!
Consolidated
2024 2023
5 5
Buidings - Right-cl-use 1,105 038 2,110,233
Less: Accumitalid depreciation (026 492) (1.209,828)
2648 544 S0, 405
Plant and equipmand - Righl-of-use E58 62,622
Less Accumutaled depreciation {24,055 {31,503)
31'__;!?5 21,119
Tetal Right-of-use asaets 00,318 G30.524

Additions b the Right-of-use assels during the year was 523 180 (2023 $1.313,837). The controlled enfity ases plant and equipaéant,

cormmarcial officas and residentiad houses under agreamants of bataaen ona and ten years with, In soma cases, options to exiend

The conirolled anifty leases office eguipmaent under agreements of Inss than one vear, These leases ang efher shar- bem of low-value, 86 hiva
baen expansed as incurned ard nol capitalzed as Righl-of-use assels i socordance with AA5E 16 Leases.
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Note 7 Property, Plant and Equipment
Land and buildings - at valuation [j)

Less: Accumulated depeeciation

Assets undar conslruction [Warks in progress)

Plant and agquipman - at cost

Less: Ascumulabad deprecaabion

Mabar vehichas - al cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

Total property, plant and equipmont

Consolidated
2024 2023
5 £
108, 503 557 44, T80, 455
{1,145.200) i
107 354 757 44 TA0 455
& 454 660 6,504,380
28083 532,180
{392 235) {326,200)
136,758 205,699
05,819 294,570
{150, 258) {121, 948)
155 562 172652
11 EIH.HT 52,053,305

(i} Mo revaluation was conducied for the 2023-24 year, The freahold land and buildings were independantly walued at 30 June 2023 by Herran
Todd White. Tha waluation resulted in g revaduption increment for 2022-23 of $11,150,085 baing recognised in the revaluabion surples for the year
endad 30 June 2023 Reder to Mate 14 for detailed dschosures regarding tha falr value measurement of (e antty's reahald land and buidings.

Propaity acquisilions ane recognised al market valus,

Moveymamls 1 CaTyIng amois
Morvernant in tha canrying amounts for each class of proparty, plant and squipment betwedn the Baginning and the end of the curmen financial year:
Land and Assels under Plant and Motor
buikdings construction | equipment | vehicles Total
1 - £ £ ]

Batance at 1 July 2023 24,750,455 6,804 308 05 890 172,652 52,050,305
Additions at cosl 54,046 355 7,337 418 3135 25,250 62,318,158
Revaluations i} i 1] ] 1]
Tramslers bebwedn calegonies B.ITT 147 (BFTT14T) (1] 1] 1]
Disposals 0 a o (8.073) (BOTY
Depreciation sxpense 11,148,200} ) (72.278) (38,267} {1,250.744)
Balance at 30 June 2024 107,354,757 5,454,660 136,758 155,562 113,101,737

Land and Assots undaer il-l:l'lt and Maotor

buildings construction | equipment | vehickes Total

5 $ - £ 3

Balance at 1 July 2022 17,010,872 3,247,154 244 810 158,752 21,581,588
Addiicns 3,658 935 15021 BT 35 =91 57224 18,874 028
Révaluabhons 11,526 417 o i} [1] 11826417
Tranalars batwaan CcAlegodies 11,374 644 (11,374 544) i) 1] 1]
Dispoaats [} ] (&) {9,597) {9,625)
Drepraciation sxpenss {200,413y ] {T4.873) (33.727) {309,012)
Balance at 30 June 2023 44,780,455 6,894,380 205,809 172,652 £2 053,395
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Note 8 Trade and Other Payables

Currant labilities
Trade payakles
Aconasd gapenses
Other payables
GST payabia

Total trade and olher payables

Note 9 Contract Liabilities

Currant labilities
Rents and deposits paid in sdvancs
Granls paid in advance

Total contract Habilities

GEranis pakd in sdvance:

Hole

Conaalitated
2024 2023
5 '
343 927 FRIER: ]
434 085 157049
365,680 Zab 50
1,254 858 131,045
Eﬁ&li 1,503,967
Consolidated
2024 2023
5 §
258 423 fiz Bar
7881 553 1,400,813
&1 -l-iEH 1,463,650

Granis paid in advance relale o padormance chlgatons that will only be satished in subsaquent year. Thess grants s enforceaba and have
sufficiantly spacfic parfomance obligations in accordanca with AASE 15 Revenue from Contracts with Custemens. The amount (hal = hald at
reponing dabe is recognised as 8 conlract kability unbl the parcemance obligations have baen sabisfied. Grant programs are listed below;

Quaensland Hate Government - Housing Support - Betler Together Program
Cueansiand State Government - Housing Irvesiment Fund Pregram
Queanstand Siate Government - Constrection works - Banya

Queansiand Slate Govarmmant - Construction works - Mirimba

Cssensland Siele Govarnment - Consirection works - Cooroy

Bandigo Bank - Consbruction works - RIZE2 Stage 3

Quednsland Slale Governenént - Conslrushon wirks - Yandna

Local Govermnmsan - Sunshing Coast Councd

Total contract liabdlities

Consalidated
2024 2023
% 5
203,817 362 512
853,932 o
456,097 o
4 B8 240 462 101
1.216.813 3,419
0 500,000
301,091 52,782
772 0
7,891,582 1,400,813

All gramls where a paymant is recaived in advance are sapectad to be recognsed in the J024-25 financial year (Iherefore curend kabdiles) B

sccordance with the performance obligalions ol the contract.
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Note 10 Employee Benefits

Conmalidated
2024 2023

$ $
Current labilities B
fnnual loave 249 972 Z30.080
Long service leave (i) 161,848 e
Todal current liEabilities 411,770 441 880
Hon-curront liahilities
Long semvics laawa b T e 11081
Total employes benalits 432652 452,930

(i} lsath lhe 2033-24 and 2022-23 amounls exclude paymants that have been expansad o OLeave sinca entaring the schemw on 1 Jamuary 2021
Reler Mobe 1(d] (x),

Provision for employes banefs reprasents amounls accrsed for annual leave and long service laave

The current partion far this pravision inchudes the iotal amounl accrued for annual heave sniflaments and the amouris acerued Tor long sanvica leave
enitlemants that have vested dua to employees having compigind the required period of service. Based on pas| axpansncs, (ha cantrolked entity does
e expect tha full amawnt of annual leave of bong service leave balances classified as curent Babilities to be setthed within the nexl 12 mandhs.
Hawewer, these amounts must be classded a3 current Rabiltes sinca the contralled entity does not have an uncanditional right B defer the setllement
af these amounis in the eveni employses wish to use ihair lkave enbBsmenl

The nan-currant porticn for this provision includes amaunts acciued for long Senice leave enlilerm ents that have nol yel vestad in relalion to thosa
amployaes who heve nol yat complatad the requined pericd of sarvice. In calculaling the present value of fulure cash flows in respect of long sarhece
hxgwa, the probabibly of long service kave beang takean 5 based upon histoncal data. The measurement and recognition criteria for employes benehils
have bean decussed in Mote 1(d) (i) and Mot 1 (o) (v).

Included in the provision is superannuaton, This s pakd in accordance with the Suparannuabon Guerantes (Admmisiraton] Aot 2014 (Ckh), Any

future changes ta superannuation rates ane considered as part of the provision caleulalions. The superamnuabion quarantee percaniage increased o
11.5% on 1 July 3034 {1 July 2023 11%)

Note 11 Lease Liabilities

Consolidated
2024 2023

] 5
Current llabiities
Propeity head leases 3694 ATL055
Cfice eqguapment 11,608 B&02
Uffices 246 4TZE 266411
Toftal cwrrent loase labilitses 282 ME4 G4E 860
Mon-curmant lahilities
Froparty haad keases a 10,208
Crifice equipment 21,631 13,191
Oifficas 45,5549 262 a2
Total non-current lease labilities LiT ki MEANE
Tatal lease liabilitios 329,454 J5240

The controdied enlity adopied AASE 16 Loases rom 1 July 2015, With the exxception of shert-berm keases and leases of low-value assals, (reler also
Hote B} right-cf-use assets and comesponding lease Eabilities are recogniged in the Slatement of Financial Poassan.
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Note 12 Borrowings

Consolidated
2024 2023
§ 5
Currant Halbilities
Sacured loans 4,038 512 84,397
Chatlel morgapes 14,983 kR 1]
Total current boarrowings 4,054 465 114 588
Man-current llabikties
Unsecunad loansg a 4,000, 000
Secured loans i 040 4,520,118
Chatiel morigagas a 20,653
Total non-current borrewings 848,020 8,540,581
Todal barowings 5,003,518 8,655,569
Secund Losna | Chatiel Martgages Tetal
Reconciliation of Bomowimgs; 5 § 5
Cipaning balance as at 1 July 2023 8,600,715 53,854 8,655 560
HNow contractsMraradoens 0 a 0
Principle paid {3,613,183} {3E.870) (3.652,053)
Balance as at 30 June 2024 4,588,532 14,983 5,003,518
Secured Loans | Chatisl Mortgagess Tatal
Reconciation of Bomowings. g $ %
Qpanirg balance as at 1 July 2022 00,000 T804 TTE, B0
Hew contracts'drawdoans B, 500,000 ] 8,600,000
Prociple paid {604, 285) {22.044) (720.330)
Balance as al 30 June 2023 8,601,715 53,854 8,655,569

Mabe thal inberest paid te included in Financing costs within the Stateman of Pralit and Loss and Other Comprehensive Incoms

As al reporting daka, all bomowings for vehicles are secured by the chathel mongags lean schadule for gach indivdual vehicle. The mangagae i
Violkswagan Financal Services Austraka ABN 20 097 071 460. Inlesas] rales are fooed.

Thizre wre ne changes to ioan arrangements for the year, A% reporting dabe, thang wixs endiawn borrowings of 3 37m (2023, nil)

Please refer to Note 14 in respect of fair value measurement of inanctal liabdities.  Fefar b Mabe 17 for futhes mfarmalion on assets pledged as
security and financing arangemants,
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Note 13 Retained Surplus and Reserves

Consolidatid
024 2023
Ruidnirsad sumplus -1 §
Retained surpluses at the begnning of the financial year 27,776,271 11,574,003
Surplus for ihe year attributabde to the members of Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited B2411 144 16,284 B1F
Capilal mamnbenance resorse bransinoss within equily 28 802 152 249
Retained surplisses at the end of the financial year 00,218,217 27 776,271
Consolidated
2024 2023
Cmpatial maindamancd resenar i) § -
Cipening talance at tha beginning of the finandal yoar 1,382,901 1,330,651
Transhans ndout) (28,802 52,249
Total capital maintenance reservs at the end of the Enancial year 1,354 0%8 1,382,901
Congolidated
2024 2023
Azged rovalralion resense (W) 5 g
Cipening balance ab the begmining of thee financial year 21,154 760 10,004, 655
Revaliralion mcrease in assel value [by cass) 1] 11,150,055
Total asset revaluation reserve atl the end of the financial year 21,154,760 21,154,780

fi] Tha capital maintenance reserve is hekd for the upkesp and mainbanance of the conbrolled entity's assets in accordance with the Sirabegic Assat
Managemand Plan. This plan datails the condilion of all building esseds and assigns a mainbenance plan to ensure property is kepl in good condition
and ramains insurable. Anrual allocalions ane made by the controbisd entity as panl of the budgetary process. Ay Tunds nal fully spont against budgel
afe ranabarmed 1o the resare

(8] The assel rowaluation reserve moaids e revalualions of nen-current assets - primanly land and buldings. The conlelied antty parfommed the
lazd full revaluation in Jume 20273 recording an increasa io tha resarve. Mo valuaton was conduciod during the curngnt financial year. The nest
valuation activity wil be conducied in the 2025-26 financial year,

Increases in the camying amount arising on revahsation of Bnd and buildings ang recognised in olher comprehsnshe incoms and accumilaled in the

assed revaluation resarve &5 3 comporant of equity. Revaluation decreasas that offse! previous increases of the same class of assels are recognised
in “alher comprehensive income’ &5 & revaluaton surpiis. All other decreases are recognised in profit of kass,
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Note 14 Fair Value Measurement

Tha endity measures and recognses fhe following assats and abiltes at fair value on 8 recuning basis afier inftial recognition:
- financial agsats at {2k value through profit or loes,

= linancial agsal at lae value through olhar compreensie intome; and

= reatold land and buddings.

T entity does nod sulbsequenitly measurm any abiltes 2l fair value on a recwiring basis. or any assels or liabdiies a1 fair valse on a non-necuering
basis

Yalraton lachnigues

Tha ardity salacts a valuation lechniqus that is appropnale in the crcumstancas and for which sufficent data is evadable to measure fair value, Tha
avallabiity of sulfechant and relevand data pimadily depands on the specifec characteristics of he a=sel o Babilty baing measwed. Tha valustion
lechniques selected by the enbty are consistant with ane of more of e follawing vakiaton appreaches.

. e marke! approach, which usas prices and alber relevand information generabed by markel ransackans for identical or similar assets or kabilites;
= ther nGcoma appreach, which converts estimated fuhee cash fows or income and expansas inle a single decounted prasent valus, and

- i cosi approach, which rafects the curmend replacemand cosd of an assat at s cumment senvice capacity.

Each valuation technique requirgs inputs thal reflect the assumplions thal buyers and sellers would use when pricing the asset o lability, including
assumplions aboul risks. When selecting a valualion lechnigue, the anlity gives prierity ta those kechnigues thal maxmise the use of chserabie
inputs and minimise the use of unobsensable inpuls. lnpuls that are developed using marked data (swch as publicly availabls infprmation on achual
iransactiona} and reflact ihe ssaumpbions ihat buyers and sellars would genarally uee when peicing the a5t or liabilly are considered ohsanvabla,
whareas inpuls fod which market dala is ot available and themehone are developed using the best information available aboul Such assumglions ane
considered unobservabie

Consolidated
Facwming fair value mmegsuraments Mok 2024 i3
5 5
Novi-financial asseds
Land and buddings T 107, 364, TAT 44 78D 455
Total assats M?&H? 44,780 455

For freahald land and buikdings, the fair values are based cn an actusl registered valuers valuafon every ihwes years that uses comparable market
data for similar properies. Tha kst tnenaial valuation scsunmed m June 2023
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CoastzBay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 15 Financial Risk Management

Tha controdiad enbly's financial instrumants conskd maindy of deposila with banks, term deposits. aocounts recahabls, accounts payables, bormowings
and lease liabilties. The carying ameoun for sach calegery of inancel instrument, measuned in sccordancs with AASE 9 Financial natnvmenls as
diladed in bl accounting polickas (retar Note 1 (d)) ase lisled balow.

Consolidated
Maole 2024 2023

£ 5
Financial Assets at amortised cost 4
Caszh and cash equevalents 4 14,270 328 8947 B41
Trada and cihar recaivabias -] 1,397 461 1,430,703
Total Financial Assals 1w“ 1“&“-";
Financial Liabilities at amortized cost
Trace and clher payabes B 2438649 15008, 9467
Leass Labdibes 11 320 454 BE2 401
Bormrowings 12 5003 516 8,855,569
Total Financial Liabilidies T,THE“ 11'12.1.’!?
HMet Financial Assels 7805 668 (753,384}

Rafar Nota 14 for datailed disclosures regardnd tha Fair value measunament of e antity’s financal asets

Cradd nisk axposwe

Tha maimum exposure to credit risk 8t reporting dade & recogrised in the gross camying amound of the financial assals or liablites inclusie of any
peovisons lor impaiment. There & no recognised impaiment loss for the current yaar (2023 ). The reporied amawnts abowe reprasant the
maximum credit rak amount. Impaimment for risk B based on pas expeiencs, current and expecied changss in econamic condiions and olher
faciors. This is supporied through the controfled entity's decumenied risk assessments both al sirategic and operafonal levels, which i padormed in
conjunchion wilh hisioncsl expetience and associabed indusiry dala  Afo reder to Note B for allowances for esjpecied credil losses (provision far
daultful debls).

Ligurciily nigk 6 p0sung;

Thee: macimam expesure 1o liquidity risk relates 1o the financial habilas of the controled enlity - leases, rade payables and borowngs, The conlrolied
enlity musl ensure sufficeent cashfice lo meet bank, supplier and lessor obligations as and when they fall due. This s achieved by enduring thal
minimum lewels of assats ane hald in a bquid form. Tha cashflow is reviewed monthly toa 12 month forecast b facilitate working capital coverage

As a result of Borrowings being reasanably low in consideration of tatal non-current assals, the Squidity risk & minimal for the nepaymient s,
Hewever, in respect of Trade and olber payables, fuctuatan of expenses oocur and ame pojctad annually to ensune sufficent liquid funds are hedd
Terma are all within 30 days. Al reportng dade, barmowings have a financal kability untd Jurne 2048 Leases are genarally shorl io medaam temm. The
commilment for leaxses ranges from 1 ba 7 years,

Mankol nisk axposure;

The antilty does nol Irade in manketsble secunbies ard deas nod rade & fareign eurmency. The exposune resides wilh misrest rate rsk in respect of
berrm deposits held bo generale intenest ncome and intarest expense payable on loans. From May 2022 o Noevember 2023, thene has been 13
consacutive inberest rata rises annownced by the Raseree Bank of Ausdralia, Accordingly, the conbolied entity has returned higher inberest revenue a3
reported in the Statement o Profil or Loss and Other Comprehensive Incoma, and aiso worked (o minimisa lean inberast axpanse




Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year endad 30 Juns 2024

Note 16 Reconciliation of Surplus to Net Cash from Operating Activities

Consolidated
2024 2023

$ ]
Surplus for the year G211, 144 16,254,517
Adjustments for,
Geants that funded cagpital (62 (83, 555 (10,165,726}
Diepreciaticn and amorisaton 1,885,700 2,504 101
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Decraate/(increass] i reda and other receivablas 123748 {279,918)
{Decraasa)increase in frade and ather payables (F30,237) {362, TET)
(Decreasalinomeass in GST 1,163,913 {247 84T)
[ Decnease)increase n employes benedils {20,278 Ja.437
{Decrease)increasa in contract kabilites 17044 (3837 363)
Mt cash from cperating activities 1267 147 3, TES,433

Note 17 Contingencies

Sevaral propertas conleined within land and buldings assat class (refar Note T), were originally granbed o tha company via deeds of grant in bus]
fram the Queansland Stale Goverremsand &cting throwgh the Depatment of Housing under the proviso the praparties be used for comenunity housing
purposes. Thoerelone, should (hese properfes cease 1o be vsed for community housing punposes, the Queesnsland State Government may have
recourss io reclaim the proporties or afect breach or associaled clause of the arsginal ag el

168 praperties (023: 13) cwned by the contralled eabity scross s b local govaimment areas of Monalon Bay and Sunshine Coast have a mertgage
regisbared on fitke with the Slake of Quesnsland and ane whaene ghls and misfesis are resarsed o he Crown.

Thede are 23 propenties thal have bean pledged as sacurily that have a registered morgage with Wasipac Banking Corporation, These properies
are owned by Ihe conlrolled ently (2023. 21),

The controlied enbity had no conbngent kabilities al the reporting date (3023 nd),
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CoastZ2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 Juna 2024

Note 18 Capital and Leasing Commitments

Capital commitments - Property, plant and equipment

Capital commitments for the constnuction of propesty 85 per execubed agresments &5 at 30 Juna 2024 are $17m (2023 $13m)
Conslruction senioes have been outsawcad o a nember of external contraciors thicugh a tendes process.  The current comemitments agains! these
coniracis are as follows and are due io be paid wihin the pext 12 monihs lo 2 yaars:

Consolidatad
Amounis Amaunts
remaining to ba remalning fo be
paid post balance paid post
date balanco date
2024 2023
] ]
Cansiruction sanvices - Yandina medium density development ] 2004 453
Consiruction services - Miimba medium densily devalopman & B34 495 8,886,121
Conslruction sanvices - Barya medium densily developmand 12,690,699 1]
Total cormmitments for capital expenditune 17,325,194 11,590,574

Capilal commilmants - Propedty, plam and equipman - contract nad yel executed

The contralied entity will have capital commitments from 2024-2025 pursuant to pending design and subsequent tender processes for constructon
sarvices for the RISEZ Stage 3, RISEZ Stage 4 and Lake MacDonald projects, Due 10 probity requirements, the expecied casling cannod yel ba
disclosed undil the fnalisation of the lendar processes. The botal program however, is refarenced within Nole 2. The expectod period of he
oammilments wil be 3 years |6 2026-27.

Lease commitments
The cantralled entity has the loliewing low value and shail berm leads commitrments lar opadaling expendiure as al Ihe rapartng dale:

Consolidated -
Amoun
Amounks remaining remalning 1o be
o b pakd post Sabt ek Kalumes
balangs date i
date
ok 2023
Lease commitmanis § %
Mo laber than 12 manthg
- &0l Barm leases iz o2 &8.077
- lywe walua leasas 2 R 4,840
Total eommilments for oparating loase axpanditung 34,587 73,016
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Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 19 Events Occurring After Balance Date

There are matbers b node that have arisen since balance dabe that may significantly affect the controlled entitys oporations, he results of thoas
aperalions, or he controled antity's state of atfairs in future financial years. These ane listed below:

{i) The enlity & curmenily n progress o modify kan terms on one loan faclity heid a1 30 June 3024, The amaendment o the loan will nol change Erms
bt may reduca in value wilh tha pedantial bo increase alhar facilities. Tha medification howawer is subjlect o a tripartite deed afrgady signed by both
Wasipac Banking Conparation and the entity at 30 Jure 2024, with the thind pay, the Gusensland Stale Governmand yed bo sign, As a result of this
process, e facilty in quaston was fully paid at 30 June 2024 (2023 Tuly drawn for $3.6m) o support negaliations with the State following their
request not (o draw down this lean. I this loan was fully drawn, e current ralie for the entity would modily consaderably as per B below:

A B
Ax siabed Imthis
report -
Biatarnanl of Loan Fully draam
Finarcial Position)
20@4 2024
5 3
Total current assels 15,677,287 19,024 472
Todal currant labilisss 15 317,162 15370, 185
Curment ratio 102% 124%

() The Enlity has & bne of credit facility thad espines in June 2025, The financker has already provided support that this faciliy will be exterded for a
larher 35 months.

i) The Quesnstand Govarnment has caled on developars, instiltional invesiars, regisbened community housing providers and eligible govermmant
anbitics ta bring foned innovaties proposals 1o add new sodial homes and afeedable housing builds, refits of refurbishmenls across Queensland
pursuan to the Hewsing Irvestment Fund - Round 2. At tha data of this mepaort, the Entity had one proponent-led application and threa partner-ed
apphcaliors which have progressed bo negoliation. I8 i highly antcipated that this wall gemarata one or mone new contracisal arrangements in the
shart §o medam [eim,

{re} Thit Queensland Governman] invbed registered community housing providers i propose néw construchion, acquesilion and redevalapamant
prosacts a5 part of the CuickSlars Cuesarsiand Capital Investmand Program for 2024-25 bo 20@8-27, Al tha dake of this repor, the Enbity had seven

applcations under evaluglion, with cutcomes axpaciad in 20@4-25. |t ks highly nbicipabted that this will ganarate one or mare new contraciual
arangements in e sharl 1o medum .

(v Housing Ausiralia imvited preposals for lunding to support fhe increased supply and availabiity of secial and atfordable housing across Ausbraka,
throwugh b Howsing Australia Fulwee Fund Round 1. A% the date of this repod, the Entity had four proponent-led applicalicns and ane parined-led
apphcation which ane now wnder evaluation. It is highly anticipaled that this will generale cne or more neny contractual arrangements in the shedt (o
rresdiurm anm.

(vl In marly July, ihe endity acquired freehald proparty in Deception Bay for redevelopment lor 52 Bm

(wii} There are no krown legal claims at reporting dabe.
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CoastZBay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
far the year ended 10 Juna 2024

Note 20 Key Management Personnel Compensation

Ay parson{s) having authonity and esponsbilty for planning. diracting and controling the achivibes ol the entity, direcBy o indiectly, including any
direcior fahalber axecutive or sheawise] of that antity, |8 considenad key managamanl personnal (KMPL Tolal remuneration paid 1 KMP of the antity
dusirg B year is as follows:

Consolidated
2034 FlrFal

§ E ]
CHreciors Foes 35438 36,260
Dhreciors Superannuation 188 3,606
Exssufing Suhrj' 723443 Fra 220
Execifive Superannizabon 805671 81,083
Total EMP compensation A43.451 893,359

Note 21 Other Related Party Transactions

Qlher relalsd paries nclude closa famdy membedrs of key managamenl persconnel and enliies hal ane contrabed o jointly controliad by thase key
ranapement pensannel individually of cobactivaly with their dose family members. Transactions babween related parlies ans on neemal cormmercial
ferms and conditions no more favourablis than these available 1o ather parties unless otherase stated

Tranzactions walfy relsied parfes

There wene no transactions wilth related parfies dwing the curent and previcus financial year in respect of commesnsial actiabos af the contralled
andity. Howavar, Coast?Bay Housing Group Limited is a registered charnty. There are cocasions whene Directors do make donalions fo the charily,
Donabcns ware made by four Directors for e fmancial year (2023: nina). The colleciive contripution amounted 10 32410 (2023 35274

Note 22 Auditor's Remuneration

Consolidated
2024 2023
Remunerabon of awdior § g
Trus! aecaunt audt fsss 7,056 Zhaa
Ciiher awdil sarvices T06E0 i}
Financial slalements audd 13,895 21,044
Total auditor's remunaration 23031 21,858
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Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 23 Interests in Subsidiaries

Infarmation aboeut principal subsidiaries

The subsidiaries ksted below have shame captal consisting solefy of ardinary shares, which are held diectly by the parent antity. The assels, kabilities.
income and expenses of tha subssdiaries have been consabidated on & line-by-Ere basis in the consolidated firancial statemants of the Group. Each

subsidiary's principal place of business s also its counlry of incorpodation ar registration.

Crarnerahip Interast Hald by the
Giroup®
Place of
TT:::'““;.‘H incorporation 2024 2023
and operation

Subsidiary nama
Purposs Real Estabe Lirnibed Wi Ausiralia 100% 100%
Husdsan Barnga Py Limted MO Auslralia 100% 100
Commmanity Build fo Rent Limited (i) Mo Ausiralia 100 ]

* Parceniagn of voling powar in proporion & ewnership
(i) this entdy was inconpedabed dusing 2023-24,

Subskiary financial siatements for Purpose Real Esale Limad have bean used in tha preparation of these consobdated financial siatements. Thay
have bean prapared as 8l the same reponling dade as the Group's linancial slalemants,

information about principal subsidiares

Cithear than Ehe following, thera are no sgnificand resticions over the Group's ability fo access of use assels, and salfle lisbiitas, of Ihe Group,
Theda is no bank debl incurned by any subsiduany (hal applies b the carying amount of the assels included within (ha consclidated financial

statements (2023: nil).
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Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2024

Note 24 Parent Entity Information

Tha fllwing infarmation has been axtraciad fnom the books and recards of the parent ard has been prapared in acoordandcs with Ausbralian
Arsaunting Standands:

Staterment of profif or loss and other comprehensive income

Parent
2024 2023
5 5
Surplus for the yeas atinbutabla to the members of Coast2Bay Housing Group Limiad v ek e e 16,53 745
Other comprebanshe incame o e year 1] 11,150,065

Total comprehansive incoma for the wear attributabde o the members of

Coast2Bay Housing Grouwp Limited 62,232,312 27,453,840

Staterment of fnancial positen

Parent
2024 2023
] $

Total assels 128 677 T24 63,145 742

Toatal lEabilitics 15,881 571 12681, 501
Mol Asgels 112,696,153 M,ll-ﬂi.ﬁﬂ
Equity

Issued capital 13 13

Revaluation surplus reserve 1,184 760 1,154, 760

Capilal mainlenance neserdse 1,354,087 1,382 000

Redaired sumplus B3, 187 283 27 826 168
Total Equity 112,896,153 50,463, B4
Guaranipos

Creast2Bay Houwsng Group Limiled hes nol enbarad inba any guararieas, in the curent financial year, in relation (o the debits of its subsidiaries
Hesmavar, il did in the presvious inarcial year in tha form of lending through an imlercompany kaan, Whitst paid in full during the 2023-24, the agreemant
is a8l in place with a lirmd of 3300000, inberest fres and expires on 30 June 2027,

Confraciun commilimanls and Canfingant sseals o fabikias

The panend entity has enbered infe conlractual commitmants a5 declosed in Mode 2. It also had no conbingencies a8 &l the reporting date (2023 rd).
Thiis is equivalent fo tha informalion a5 disclosed in Mote 18.

Significan! accaimling pebicies and scoounhng fudgamants amd esimales

The accaunting poiices, judgemeants and estimates of tha parent anlity ara consitent with thesa of the contoliad entity, as disclosad in Note 1
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Coast2Bay Housing Group Limited and Controlled Entity

MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year endad 30 June 2024

Note 24 Parent Entity Information

The 13 sharehakdens of the parenl enkbly are as follows

Ecjuity Works Asses, lne.
Sunshine Coast Housing and Homalasaness Metwork
Encircla Lid

Residents Advisory Group

St Vincenl de Paul Sociely Qusensland

Youburm

Austrakan Penskonars and Superannisants Laague, Caloundra
STEPS Group Ausiralia Lid

Nambour Community Cenina

Marcachy Mesghibourhosd Centre Ins

Calourdra Community Cenfre

Zonla Club of Caloundra Gity Ing

Horth Coast Aborginal Corporation for Community Haalth

Note 25 Members' Guarantee

The conlrolled antdy i incorporated under the Carporations Act 2007 and 8 & company Bmiled by guaranies. If fha enlity i wound up, te
canstiution siales that each member i requred o contribute a madmum of 51 each towards mesting any culstanding obligations of the enlity. Al 30
June 2024, the nember of members was 13 (2023 1)

Directors’ Declaration
for the year ended 30 June 2024

In accordance with & resolution of the Dirscton of Coast?Bay Housing Graup Limited, the Directors of the regstered entty declare that, in the
Direchars’ opinicn:
(i} Tha financial slatemants and notes salisfy the requiremeants of the Ausfralan Chanties and Nod-lor-profils Commession Acf 2002 and

&) comply with Australian Acsounling Slandards - Simpliied Discloswias appheable b the entity, and
(b} give & true and fair view of the financial position of the registered antily a8 at 30 June 2024 and of ils perfarmance for the year ended
on that date

() Thare are reasonable grounds o balieve that the registared enlity will ba abla [0 pay its debis s and whan ey becoma dus and payabie

This daclaration is signad in accordanca with subs B0U1502) of the Austredan Chanties snd Nol-fae-predls Comvmsson Rogalaton 20413

O b=half of #he Dwesclons

(X R

Gordon Sulherland, Chair
Daedihs AGT day of ﬂ”ﬁ?"ﬂ_ 2024
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COAST2BAY HOUSING GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITY
2024 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Opinien

We have audited the financlal repert of Coast2Bay Houslng Group Limited and its controlled antity {the
enfity), which comprises the consolidated staterment of financial position as at 30 June 2024, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, and the
directors’ declaration,

I @ur opinian, the accompanying financial report of the entity is in accordance with Division 60 of the

Austraiian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2092 {the ACNC Act), including:

(l  ging a true and falr view of the entity’s financlal posktion as at 30 June 2024 and of its financial
perormance for the year then ended; and

{li} complying with Australian Accouniling Standards — AASHE 1080: Gencral Purpose Financial
Statermnents — Simplified Diselosures for For-Prafit and Mot-for-Prefil Tier 2 Entities and Divislon
B0 of Australian Charifies and Nol-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013,

W conducted gur audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Cur responsibilities under those

standards are further described in the Auditor's ResponsibiMies for the Audit of the Financial Repor section of

our report. Wa are independent of the registered enlity in accordance with the ACMC Act the ethical

requirameants of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for

Frofessional Accountants (incleding Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant bo aur audit of the

financial repon in Austraia, We have also hfilled cur ofhgr ethacal responsibilfies in accondance wilh the Code

We bolieve that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate Io provide a basis for our
apinion,

i ar than the Financl and Auditor’s Re T
The directors ana responsitie fof the other Information. The other idarmation comprises the information incledad
in ihe registered enlity's annual regort Tor the year ended 30 June 2024, bul does ndl include the fnancial repor
and our audior's repor theneon,

Chr openicn on the financial repor does not cover the ofher infcemation and accondingly we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thareon.

In connaction with our sudit of the financial report, our responaibity i (o read the other information and, indoing
a0, consider wheathar the olher information (3 matenally Inconsisten with the nancal report of ow kesdedge
cbtained in the audit of othersise appaars 10 be matenally misstated

If, bansed on the work wa have parformied, we condlude that there is a matenal misstatement of this olier
informaticn, we are required 13 repart that fact. We hava nathing to report in this regand.

'I'r'rE dlrect-l:ts -nf tha Emht‘.I ara Tﬂpﬂ'ﬂlﬂe lﬂr lha pa'eparam:rn of the financial report thal gves a e and (el
vigw in acoordance with Austrakan Accounting Standards - AASHE 1060; General Purpose Financial Statemenls
= Simplified Disclogunes for For-Prafit and Mat-lor-Prafi Teer 2 EnlRies and the ACKHC Acl and for such intermal
cantrol as the deaciors datermine is necessary to enable tha preparation of the financial repon that gives a true
and fair vienw and is frea from material misstaternant, whathar due to fraud of esnor.

In preparing the fingncial repod, the diteciors ane responsibie for assessing tha entity’s abdty 1o continue 83 a8
going concern, declosing, as appicabée, mabtlers ralated to going concenn and wsing the going concarn basis of
accounlg unless the direclors eilher intend b lgusdale the group of 0 cease operations, or have no reakstic
allernalive but fo do o
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COASTZBAY HOUSING GROUP LIMITED AND CONTROLLED ENTITY
2024 INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT...CONTINUED

DIJ uhjudnras are tu l:lbialn raaq;nnahlu aﬁsuranm abmll 'IH'IMMI' thi financial nepart a8 8 whale i free rom
material misstatemant, whether due to frawd or eror, and to issue an audilar's repart that includes cwr opinlon.
Reasonable assurance i a high level of assuranca, but is not a guarantes that an audit conduced in acetrdancs
with the Austrafian Auditing Standards will abways detect a material misstabement whan it exists. Misstalements
can arse from frewd of eror and are considered matesial i, indiidually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expecied lo influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial repod,

As parl of an audil In accordance wilh the Australan Audiing Standards, we exencise professional pdgement

and maintam professional sceplicisn throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the inancial repor, whather due o frawd or error,
design and perform audil proceduies responsive bo those nisks, and oblain audil evidence tal is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinéon, The risk of nat defecling a maberial misstalement resulting
from franed is higher than for one resulting from eror, as fraud may invabag collusian, forgery, mtenticnal
amissions, misrepresentations, or the ovarride of internall contral,

= Qiptain an undarstanding of internal conkrol rebevant o the awdit in order bo design audit procedures. thal ane
appropriate in the crcumatances, but nat for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
B enlify's inlemal coniral,

= Evalunie the appropristensss of accounting pebcies used and (he reasonableness of accounting estimales
and refated disclosunes made by the direclors,

— Cpnclude on the appropriateness of the direciors’ use of the geeng concern basis of accounting and, based
an tha audit evidence oblained, whathar a material uncartainty exists related b events or condilions that may
cast significant doubt on the enbity's ability 1o continue a3 a going concern, If we conclude thal a malenal
unceftainty exisls, we are required 1o draw attention in our sudibor's repaort o the related disclosures in the
fimamcial repon or, If such disclosures are madequate, to modify our oginion, Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obiainged up to 1he date of our audilor's repor. However, fubwe events or conditions may
cause the endity to cease bo conbnue a5 @ Gaikg Concem,

= Ewaluate the overall presentation, structwe and conbent of thi financial repon, mcheding the disclosures, and
whether the nancial report represents the underlying transactions and evwents in a manner that achieves fair
presentation,

We communicate with the direclors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and sgnificant audit findings, including any significant defciencies in internal control that we identify during our
audi.

Lerver+ Portnesy f(
Brett J Buntain
Love + L e
Partners RCA Ma. 213172
. :m.:lllﬁumru.| Dﬂﬂ::?hﬂﬂm
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